
Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. 

 Board of Directors Meeting  

June 23, 2022 

Meeting Agenda 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

II. Motion for Approval of April 2022 minutes 

 

III. Standing Committee Reports 

 

1) PP&E Committee 

a.) Resolution 22.35 –HS/EHS Spring 2022 CLASS Reports 

b.) Resolution 22.36—HS/EHS Reports for Fall & Winter School Readiness Goals  

 
2) Board Development Committee—did not meet. 

 

3) Finance/Audit Committee 

a.) Resolution 22.37—2022 WAP Grant/Budget Submission 

b.) Resolution 22.38—CSBG CARES contract amendment 

c.) Resolution 22.39—2022 United Way Grant Submission   

 

4) Executive Committee 

a.) Resolution 22.40—Changes to Personnel Policies and Procedures 

 
IV. Executive Director Report 

 

V. Program Director Reports 
 

 

a) Deputy Director Report 

b) Energy Services 

c) Family Development 

d) Head Start/Early Head Start 

e) WIC 

 

VI. Head Start Policy Council Update 

 

VII. Old Business 

 
VIII. New Business 

a.) Resolution 22.41—2022 WIC Continuation Grant/Budget Submission 

b.) Resolution 22.42—HS/EHS Deficiency Corrective Action Plan 

 

IX. Executive Session if needed 

 

X. Adjournment 



 

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. 
 Board of Directors Meeting  

May 26, 2022 
Meeting Minutes 

 
I. Call to Order made at 12:02 pm. 

Members present: Melissa Alvord, Doug Bentley, Sarah Beshers, April Dennison, Jeanette 
Dippo, Billie MacNabb, Mary Beth Mathey, Penny Prignon, Helen Spaulding, Lynne Sypher, 
Shelley Warnow.  Excused: Mary Bliss, Ella DiIorio, Patty Schaap, Larry Woolheater. 

 

II. Motion to approve April 2022 minutes made by Doug Bentley, 2nd by Jeanette Dippo.  Motion 
carried. 

 
III. Standing Committee Reports 

 

1) PP&E Committee – met May 12, 2022.  Committee reviewed the second quarter PPR (Program 
Progress Report) for Quarter 2 numbers for both regular CSBG and CSBG CARES.  Committee 
discussed the Volunteer Driver Program and need for new drivers.  Committee reviewed the 
Head Start/Early Head Start deficiency from the January 26th/27th child situation. 

a.) Resolution 22.29 –Motion to accept the 2nd Quarter CSBG and CSBG CARES PPRs made by 
Helen Spaulding, 2nd by Mary Beth Mathey.  Motion carried. 

 
2) Board Development Committee – met on May 17, 2022.  Committee discussed replacing Helen 

Spaulding’s seat on the board and her treasurer seat.  Discussed Doug Bentley replacing board 
Treasurer and Danielle Brown replacing Helen’s seat in the private sector.  Discussed switching 
Mary Beth Mathey and Ella DiIorio seats to cover both private-sector and public-sector 
representation.  Discussed the rescheduled Strategic Planning Retreat on Wednesday, June 1st, 
2022.   
A.) Resolution 22.30—Motion to accept Seating of Danielle Brown to the Board of Directors 

made by Jeanette Dippo, 2nd Melissa Alvord.  Motion carried. 
B.) Resolution 22.31—Motion to accept Re-seating of Mary Beth Mathey to public-sector 

representative made by Helen Spaulding, 2nd by Jeanette Dippo.  Motion carried. 
C.) Resolution 22.32—Motion to accept the Re-seating of Ella DiIorio to private-sector 

representative made by Billie MacNabb, 2nd by Jeanette Dippo.  Motion carried. 
D.) Resolution 22.33—Motion to accept the Appointment of Doug Bentley to Board Treasurer 

made by Jeanette Dippo, 2nd by April Dennison.  Doug Bentley abstained.  Motion carried. 
 
3.)  Finance/Audit Committee – met on May 19, 2022.  Committee discussed the ongoing CDS 

Fidelis issue that is reaching resolution--we were finally just able to submit the first file for the 
HHA upload. Committee reviewed and discussed the proposed 2.28% COLA budget for HS/EHS 
Program Year 2022-2023.  Committee also reviewed and discussed the HS/EHS Quality 
Improvement (QI) proposed budget submission for Program Year 2022-2023.  Committee 
discussed the Energy Services extension of the 2021 contract through June 2022 and the 
refunding materials for Program Year 2022.  Committee discussed the plan to spend out some 
of the CSBG CARES contract that ends September 2022 with an amendment that will come 
through June Finance/Audit committee.   
Resolution 22.34—HS/EHS COLA and QI budgets motion made by Jeanette Dippo, 2nd by April 
Dennison.  Motion carried. 

 



Motion to approve March financial statements made by Helen Spaulding, 2nd by Billie MacNabb.  
Motion carried 

 
4.) Executive Committee—did not meet. 

 
IV. Executive Director Report – HS/EHS federal review is currently underway.  Everything is going 

smoothly so far.  Strategic planning was postponed on May 4th, rescheduled for Wednesday, 
June 1st.  Participated in CDPAP RFO webinar with Bond, Schoeneck & King on Friday, May 20th, 
which touched on the RFO process being set-aside with Program having the ability to complete 
an attestation to continue to operate like we have been.  Greg and Kirsten are meeting to 
research what this all means for the Program and CAPCO’s next steps. Update on the Parker 
Project and the City’s Planning Committee meeting on Monday, May 23rd.  Updated on 2nd 
annual golf tournament that took place on Saturday, May 21st.  Discussed the HS/EHS program 
deficiency we have received for the incident that happened in January of 2022 and CAPCO’s 
next steps in our response to the deficiency. 

 
V. Program Director Reports –  

 
 

a) Deputy Director Report 

b) Energy Services 

c) Family Development 

d) Head Start/Early Head Start 

e) WIC 

 
VI. Head Start Policy Council Update – Meeting was cancelled until Tuesday, May 31st. 

 
VII. Old Business – No Old business. 

 
VIII. New Business 

a.) Board Roles and Responsibilities Training 
 

IX. Executive Session if needed – None needed. 
 

X. Adjournment motion made by Helen Spaulding, 2nd by April Dennison. 
Meeting adjourned at 1:30 pm. 

 



PP&E Committee Meeting             June 8, 2022 

Meeting called to order at 12:06 pm.   

Members present: Billie MacNabb, Doug Bentley, Patricia Schaap, Lynne Sypher. Excused: Melissa 

Alvord.  Staff: Greg Richards, Kirsten Parker, Kristie Coye, Danielle Treacy. 

 

Committee reviewed the HS/EHS Management Reports for March & April.  Discussed how we are still 

under enrolled and working on child enrollment for next Program Year.  We are currently trying to 

recruit staff for the fall.  We have a total of 18 classrooms and only 10 are filled up. Looked at 

attendance sheets from March & April.  We were still experiencing some shutdowns in the classrooms, 

but they have steadily declined.  We discussed how Head Start is going to be implementing new 

guidelines from the Health Department that will now only require a 5-day quarantine in lieu of a 10, as 

long as children are not symptomatic and wear masks for days 6-10.  We have been able to resume 

some family engagement activities and have seen some slow improvement in participation in them 

(from March to April).  We are hopeful for an increase in family engagement and a more “normal” fall. 

Committee reviewed the CLASS report.  This report is done twice a year – in the fall and spring.  The 

report observes the teacher to child interaction.  This is not required but something we do every year.  

We are currently lucky enough to have 8 CLASS observers employed by us.  We reviewed the Spring 

scores and all were great numbers. 

Motion to accept 2022 CLASS Report made by Lynne Sypher, 2nd by Patricia Schaap.  Motion carried. 

Committee reviewed the School Readiness Goals Report.  This report is done three times a year.  First 

thing in the fall, again in the winter and then in the Spring.  Kristi let the committee know that we want 

to see the measurements going up from the “baseline” fall numbers.  Looking at the winter numbers, all 

but 1 has dramatically increased from the fall time. 

Motion to accept the School Readiness Goals made by Doug Bentley, 2nd by Billie MacNabb.  Motion 

carried. 

Committee discussed a few prospects to replace Doug Bentley’s seat on PP&E as he will be moving into 

Helen Spaulding’s seat on Finance. 

 

 

No further business.  Meeting adjourned at 12:37 pm. 

















































































Page 1 of 15/17/2022

11:37 AM jenniferg
CAPCO

5630 - Pre-K CLASS® Average Score Charts
Observations occurring: 2/28/2022 - 6/1/2022

2019 National Average

2019 Lowest 10% Nationally
CAPCO Re-competition Level

PC NC TS RSP BM PD ILF CD QF LM ES CO IS

2/28/22 - 6/1/22 6.1 1.9 5.76 5.81 5.86 5.71 5.14 2.91 2.95 2.86 5.94 5.57 2.9

Classroom Assessment Scoring System® and CLASS® are registered trademarks of Teachstone Training, LLC (“Teachstone”), 675 Peter Jefferson
Parkway, Suite 400, Charlottesville, VA 22911, http://teachstone.com. Teachstone is the copyright owner of the Pre-K CLASS® Manual and Pre-K -
3 Score Sheet by Robert Pianta, Karen La Paro, and Bridget Hamre, and these materials are used with Teachstone’s permission. © ChildPlus





APPROACHES TO LEARNINGSOCIAL EMOTIONAL COGNITIVE LANGUAGE LITERACY PHYSICAL MATH

FALL 0% 49% 67% 51% 44% 75% 53%

WINTER 7% 68% 87% 53% 55% 87% 55%

SPRING

APPROACHES
TO LEARNING

SOCIAL
EMOTIONAL

COGNITIVE LANGUAGE LITERACY PHYSICAL MATH

FALL 0% 49% 67% 51% 44% 75% 53%

WINTER 7% 68% 87% 53% 55% 87% 55%

SPRING

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

EHS - Meeting/Exceeding within GOLD Widely Held Expectations
2021-2022

FALL WINTER SPRING *Includes Home Based



APPROACHES TO LEARNING SOCIAL EMOTIONAL COGNITIVE LANGUAGE LITERACY PHYSICAL MATH

FALL 0% 25% 19% 36% 4% 47% 6%

WINTER 4% 84% 68% 65% 36% 81% 42%

SPRING

APPROACHES TO
LEARNING

SOCIAL EMOTIONAL COGNITIVE LANGUAGE LITERACY PHYSICAL MATH

FALL 0% 25% 19% 36% 4% 47% 6%

WINTER 4% 84% 68% 65% 36% 81% 42%

SPRING

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

3 Year Olds - Meeting/Exceeding within GOLD Widely Held Expectations
2021-2022

FALL WINTER SPRING



APPROACHES TO LEARNING SOCIAL EMOTIONAL COGNITIVE LANGUAGE LITERACY PHYSICAL MATH

FALL 4% 4% 22% 40% 3% 44% 3%

WINTER 2% 39% 35% 65% 37% 74% 33%

SPRING

APPROACHES
TO LEARNING

SOCIAL
EMOTIONAL

COGNITIVE LANGUAGE LITERACY PHYSICAL MATH

FALL 4% 4% 22% 40% 3% 44% 3%

WINTER 2% 39% 35% 65% 37% 74% 33%

SPRING

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

4 Year Olds - Meeting/Exceeding within GOLD Widely Held 
Expectations
2021-2022

FALL WINTER SPRING



Finance Committee Meeting                              June 16, 2022 
 

Meeting called to order at 8:34 a.m.  
 
Finance Committee Members present: Ella DiIorio, Doug Bentley & Shelly Warnow.  Excused: Penny 
Prignon.  Absent: Sarah Beshers 
Staff: Martha Allen, Greg Richards, Kirsten Parker, Danielle Treacy. 
 

Motion to accept and file Financial Statements made by Shelly Warnow, 2nd by Doug Bentley.  Motion 

carried. 

Consumer Directed Services – Updated on the CDS Fidelis issue.  Making strides on Fidelis billing issue 

with the submission of our first back file at the end of May 2022.  Hope to have all back‐files caught up 

before end of August.  The RFO process has been set aside for now and it is looking like we will continue 

to have the opportunity to continue to be the financial intermediary for the CDPA program.  No 

indication currently how long that will be.  Greg & Kirsten will meet to see what the future for this year 

will look like, both immediate and long‐term.  Looking at possibly starting to accept new consumers 

through select MLTC’s.  Was also updated on Fidelis is looking to switch to PMPM (price per member per 

month administrative rate).  The last time Fidelis tried to do this, Lindy fought against it and was able to 

keep the rate from switching, but it appears Fidelis will now be doing this across the board.  This model 

is not financially beneficial with minimum wage going up & needing to provide benefits.  We may look at 

pulling away from Fidelis & having current consumers go somewhere else depending on the direction of 

these changes with Fidelis, will keep Board updated. 

Early Childhood Development – New program year started 6/1/2022.  The COLA & QI budgets were 

submitted to the Office of Head Start and we are awaiting approval.  Discussed breaking our lease for 

the Elm Tree facility in light of the new Learning Adventure property we are renting.  We did sign a 3‐

year lease in April 2021 that we are working with Bruce Martins from Elm Tree on breaking early with an 

agreement that all sides would agree with.  Will continue to keep the Board updated with the 

agreement that is made. 

Energy Services Department – Extended the 2021 contract to June 2022 in lieu of April 2022.  The 

official 2022 contract has been submitted to HCR.  It is again possible that the Program may not be able 

to complete all projects but that is only due to lack of supply.  We are still monitoring more funding 

through the Infrastructure bill coming as well.  Hope to hear more in the months to come. 

Motion to accept the 2022 WAP budget Submission made by Doug Bentley, 2nd by Ella DiIorio.  Motion 

carried. 

Family Development Department – Looking to amend the CSGB CARES contract to voucher for 70% of 

the funding.  We received notice that we received the NOEP contract through Hunger Solutions.  This 

increased from $66,000 to $72,000.  We did only receive it for 1 year instead of 5 years.  Hunger 

Solutions will monitor program performance and state funding availability every year for the new 5‐year 

cycle.  We received a $5,000 award through the town of Cortlandville ARP awards to assist with 

continuing to pay the rent for the Adult Education space.  We received a 1‐year grant through 

ProLiteracy and are submitting to the United Way grant for $15,000 (increase of $5,000).  This will help 

pay space costs and fund a portion of the Adult Education Coordinator salary. 



Motion for CSBG CARES Amendment made by Ella DiIorio, 2nd by Doug Bentley.  Motion carried. 

Motion for United Way Grant Submission made by Shelley Warnow, 2nd by Ella DiIorio.  Motion 

carried. 

WIC‐ Discussed how we are currently in year 8 of 5‐year cycle with only a 2% increase.  This causes some 

challenges with increases in insurance, space cost and budget for salary.  We are currently looking at 

areas that the Agency can absorb some costs to help with the budget.  Also continuing to work on RFA 

submission. The continuation grant is due to be submitted by 6/22/22 and will be brought to the full 

Board under ‘New Business’.  

 

No further business.  Meeting adjourned at 9:46 am. 

 

 



FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
SUMMARY of April 2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PRESENTED BY Martha Allen 
June 16, 2022 

 
 
 
AGENCY 
Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable are current except for Medicaid receivables that are 
billed per the Medicaid billing schedule. 
 
 
CONSUMER DIRECTED SERVICES 
CDPAP billing submitted for payment through the payroll ending 05/20/2022 with the exception 
of Fidelis billing.  We have made progress on the Fidelis billing issue, and we were able to 
submit the first back-billing file for pay period ending 1/28/2022. We are working to continue 
catching up on back-billing as we work with HHAeXchange for trainings on re-billings and 
portal management. We are working to be fully caught up with the back-billing and only billing 
current claims by the end of August 2022. 
 
We participated in a webinar with the NYS CDPA association, CDPAANY’S and the Bond, 
Schoeneck, and King legal firm concerning the NYS budget passage and the anticipated outcome 
for the CDPA RFO process. As anticipated, the RFO process has been set aside and operating 
programs will have the ability to complete an attestation to continue serving as a Fiscal 
Intermediary (FI). There is no indication as to when the attestation will be available, but the 
webinar indicated the first quarter of 2023, but again, this is a best guess from all parties. 
Questions remain about the joint employment piece that remains a major concern without 
clarification from NYS DOH. We will continue to operate the Program throughout the summer 
as we look to begin accepting new Consumers and as we wait for further clarity on next steps. 
 
 
EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT 
The HS/EHS Program started the new contract year on 6/1/2022. The COLA and QI budgets 
were submitted to the Office of Head Start and we wait official approval, which is anticipated in 
the summer of 2022 to be backdated to 6/1/22. 
 
The Program is looking at our lease with the Elm Tree facility in light of the new Learning 
Adventure property we are renting from the YWCA Cortland. We have not had children at Elm 
Tree throughout the Program Year, and it is our anticipation to transition out of that center with 
the addition of Learning Adventure. We signed a 3-year lease in April 2021 that we are working 
with Bruce Martins from Elm Tree to break early with an arrangement that works for all parties.  
 
 
ENERGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
The Energy Services Program submitted the new contract package for the 2022-2023 grant cycle 
that technically began April 1st, but with the approval on the extension for last Program Year, we 
have worked to spend out the 2021 contract with the 2022 contract being presented to the 



Finance Committee today. This contract is now technically for 9 months with the 2021 extension 
through June 2022.  
 
The Program is still monitoring developments on the federal level that could result in additional 
funding for weatherization through what is being termed as ‘BIL’ and Weatherization Readiness 
Funding as a result of the bi-partisan infrastructure bill.  There remains no tangible information 
to share other than anticipated funding that is slated to be available in September. We still expect 
to learn more as we work through the summer months. 
 
FAMILY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
An amendment for the CSBG CARES contract is being presented to the committee today to 
voucher for the 70% of the funding to carry us through the cycle that ends September 30, 2022. 
We continue to work on the regular CSBG contract amendment that includes the carry-over of 
$15,884 from the 2020-2021 Program Year of the regular CSBG contract being factored in for 
the entitlement amendment.   
 
We received notice that we were again awarded the NOEP contract through Hunger Solutions in 
the amount of $72,000, an increase from the previous 5-year funding cycle of $66,000. It is 
important to note that awards for the grant were given for just 1 year as Hunger Solutions will 
monitor Program performance and State funding availability each year of the new 5-year cycle.   
 
We have received an additional award through the town of Cortlandville ARP awards in the 
amount of $5,000.00 to assist with continuing to pay the rent for the Adult Education space that 
has been being paid for through CSBG CARES. This is vital as the CARES funding ends in 
September. We have received a 1-year grant through ProLiteracy and are submitting the United 
Way grant with an increased ask of $15,000.00, up from our typical ask of $10,000. United Way 
works to help pay space costs and primarily works to fund a portion the Adult Education 
Coordinator salary. 
 
 
WIC 
We are actively working to develop the budget for PY 2022, which will be year 8 of our 5-year 
cycle with a modest 2% increase. This has been a significant challenge with anticipated increases 
in insurance costs, space cost increases from last year, and planned building work that will 
impact the WIC department’s allocation to the building budget. The Program is looking at areas 
that the Agency could help to absorb to get us through PY 2022 in anticipation of the RFA being 
in place for PY 2023. We are still recruiting for a Nutritionist that will impact the budget in 
terms of pay rate, timing of hire, and anticipated insurance elections. 
 
We will begin work on the RFA following the submission of our PY 2022 continuation. The 
committee can anticipate reviewing the continuation at the full Board given the time constraints 
of development and submission. 
 
 



ITEM/REPORT DUE DATE FILED
Subsidiary ledgers in balance for the month? N/A yes
Bank accounts have been reconciled through? N/A March
Accounts receivable over 90 days past due N/A yes - Medicaid
Accounts payable over 90 days past due N/A none
NYS Sales and Use Tax Filing 3/31/2022 3/16/2022
NYS Vendor Responsibilty NFP Form expires 6 months 3/2/2022
U.S. Government's System for Award Management (SAM). Annually 9/13/2021
FT-500  Application for Refund of Sales Tax Paid on Petroleum Products Annually
Federal Audit Clearinghouse 3/31/2022 11/15/2021
Coporate Tax Returns - IRS 990 & CHAR 500 (auto-approved 6 months extension) 11/15/2022
Coporate Tax Returns - IRS 5500 (Retirement)  (auto-approved 6 month extension) 10/15/2022
Quarterly payroll tax returns filed by complete payroll qtrly yes
US Dept of Labor - Bureau of Labor Statistics - Multiple Worksite (MWR) qtrly 1/31/2022
Form 1099's 1/31/2022 1/31/2022

 CSBG 2021 ‐2022 py
 20% Expenditure report 4/14/2022
45% Expenditure report
70% Expenditure report
 1st QTR  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
2nd QTR  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 4/30/2022 4/26/2022
3rd Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 7/31/2022
4th Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 10/31/2022

MWBE Reports
3rd qtr   (Oct-Dec) 1/10/2022 1/19/2022
4th QTR  (Jan-Mar) 4/11/2022 4/11/2022
1st qtr  MWBE Reports  (Apr-Jun) 7/10/2022
2nd qtr  MWBE Reports  (Jul-Sep) 10/10/2022
  Unaudited Financial Statements - 21.22 Contract 11/30/2022

Energy Services

WAP 21‐22 PY 
Monthly Voucher to Energy Services for presentation to DHCR May 6/15/2022
1st qtr MWBE Reports (April-June) 7/10/2021 7/9/2021
2nd qtr   MWBE Reports (July-September) 10/10/2021 10/10/2021
3rd qtr  MWBE Reports (October-December) 1/10/2022 1/10/2022
4th qtr  MWBE Reports (January-March) 4/11/2022 4/11/2022
 Unaudited Financial Statements - 21.22WAP - extended to June 2022 7/31/2022

Head Start & Early Head Start 
Quarterly Form 425:  Enter in Payment Management System (PMS)

Quarterly Cash Reports Nl Loneger Required
Form 425 due: Enter in Payment Manaemant Systems - 20-21 py

semi-annual  (June-November) 1/30/2022 1/30/2022
annual (June-May) 7/30/2022
final  (June-May) 10/30/2022

Form 429A due: Enter in Grant Solutions - 21-22 py 7/30/2022

WIC 21‐22py
Monthly Voucher  (due 45 days after month end) April 6/15/2022
MWBE Reports

1st qtr MWBE Reports (January-March) 4/11/2022 4/11/2022
2nd qtr   MWBE Reports (April to June) 7/10/2022
3rd qtr  MWBE Reports (July to September) 10/10/2022
4th qtr  MWBE Reports (October to December) 1/10/2022 1/10/2022

Final Voucher 21-22PY  - Line Item Interchange approvd by NYS 11/16/2022

CORTLAND COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

FINANCE DIRECTOR MONTHLY CHECKLIST

FOR THE MONTH APRIL  2022

Submitted by Martha Allen on June 16, 2022

Program Reports



CAPCO

Income Statement

1/1/22-12/31/22 CAPCO ADMINISTRATION

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL   

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 1/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 1/1/2022 
4/30/2022

FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

ADM - ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES

EXPENSES

     PERSONNEL

          SALARIES/WAGES

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 400,914 33,410 35,248 133,638 128,132 272,782 400,914 0

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 33,440 2,787 2,850 11,147 11,352 22,088 33,440 0

          Total SALARIES/WAGES 434,354 36,196 38,098 144,785 139,484 294,870 434,354 0

          FRINGES

FICA EXPENSE 32,716 2,726 2,659 10,905 9,660 23,056 32,716 0

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 14,143 1,179 1,166 4,714 4,237 9,906 14,143 0

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 372 31 44 124 154 218 372 0

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 556 46 63 185 249 308 556 0

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 28,877 2,406 986 9,626 4,202 24,675 28,877 0

401-K EXPENSE 9,538 795 765 3,179 2,780 6,758 9,538 0

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 3,747 312 399 1,249 1,589 2,158 3,747 0

          Total FRINGES 89,949 7,496 6,082 29,983 22,872 67,077 89,949 0

     Total PERSONNEL 524,303 43,692 44,179 174,768 162,357 361,947 524,303 0

     OTHER THAN PERSONNEL

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OFFICE SUPPLIES 9,000 750 672 3,000 3,520 5,480 9,000 0

FOOD & FOOD SUPPLIES 200 17 0 67 0 200 200 0

COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 14,000 1,167 1,139 4,667 4,882 9,118 14,000 0

PARKING LOT RENTAL 1,100 92 80 367 322 778 1,100 0

LEGAL FEES 0 0 0 0 0 0

POSTAGE 1,200 100 92 400 521 679 1,200 0

DUPLICATING & PRINTING 1,700 142 156 567 537 1,163 1,700 0

INTERNET SERVICE 1,200 100 84 400 335 865 1,200 0

TELEPHONE 1,200 100 8 400 29 1,171 1,200 0

Computer & Software Expense 31,150 2,596 2,305 10,383 17,051 14,099 31,150 0

MEETING EXPENSE 1,100 92 40 367 90 1,010 1,100 0

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 2,420 202 2,360 807 2,360 60 2,420 0

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 1,600 133 0 533 0 1,600 1,600 0

Staff Development 500 42 0 167 40 460 500 0

LOCAL TRAVEL 400 33 0 133 2 398 400 0

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 8,200 683 2,589 2,733 2,589 5,611 8,200 0

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 3,500 292 0 1,167 117 3,383 3,500 0

BACKGROUND CHECKS 300 25 0 100 77 223 300 0

PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 500 42 8 167 8 492 500 0

ADVERTISING 500 42 0 167 280 220 500 0

BUILDING ALLOCATION 30,000 2,500 1,942 10,000 8,466 21,534 30,000 0

109,770 9,148 11,474 36,590 41,226 68,545 109,770 0

     CONTRACTUAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 2,000 167 1,506 667 1,506 494 2,000 0

     Total CONTRACTUAL 2,000 167 1,506 667 1,506 494 2,000 0

     ADMINISTRATION

FINANCIAL AUDIT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PAYROLL PROCESSING 2,500 208 178 833 915 1,585 2,500 0

EAP SERVICES 10,000 833 873 3,333 3,493 6,507 10,000 0

EQUIPMENT DEPRECIATION 1,515 126 505 1,515 1,515 0

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION -650,088 -54,174 -58,210 -216,696 -209,037 -441,051 -650,088 0

     Total ADMINISTRATION -636,073 -53,006 -57,159 -212,024 -204,629 -431,444 -636,073 0

Total EXPENSES 0 0 0 0 459 -459 0 0

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 459 459 0 0

ADM-APR-2022



CAPCO

Income Statement

1/1/22-12/31/22 CAPCO FACILITY

ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM TOT BUDGET BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

YTD BUDGET
 1/1/2022 
4/30/2022

FORECAST TOT CONTRACT REMAINING

     OTHER THAN PERSONNEL

OFFICE SUPPLIES 18 18

COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 11,000 917 975 3,667 3,900 7,100 11,000$                 0

PARKING LOT RENTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                       0

OFFICE UTILITIES 25,000 2,083 2,769 8,333 12,466 12,534 25,000$                 0

JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE 3,200 267 196 1,067 950 2,250 3,200$                   0

BUILDING MAINTENANCE 60,000 5,000 447 20,000 2,520 57,480 60,000$                 0

TRASH REMOVAL 3,500 292 209 1,167 836 2,664 3,500$                   0

BUILDING ALLOCATION (140,700) (11,725) -8,156 (46,900) -33,591 (107,109) (140,700)$              0

MAINTENANCE ALLOCATION 38,000 3,167 3,336 12,667 12,696 25,304 38,000$                 0

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONNEL 0 0 -205 0 -205 223 0 0

Total EXPENSES 0 0 (205) 0 (205) 223 0 0

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 205 0 205 (223) 0 0

BLDG-APR-2022



CAPCO

Income Statement

1/1/22-12/31/22 CDPAP-MEDICAID

ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM TOT BUDGET BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

YTD 
BUDGET

 1/1/2022 
4/30/2022

FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

MEDICAID - MEDICAID    
REVENUE

     OTHER REVENUE

MEDICAID REVENUE 2,669,139$                 222,428 216,424 889,713 1,055,843 1,613,296 2,669,139 0

Prior Years Medicaid Revenue -$                           0 0 0 10,059 0 10,059 (10,059)

     Total OTHER REVENUE 2,669,139$                 222,428 216,424 889,713 1,065,901 1,613,296 2,679,198 (10,059)

Total REVENUE 2,669,139$                 222,428 216,424 889,713 1,065,901 1,613,296 2,679,198 (10,059)

EXPENSES

     PERSONNEL

          SALARIES/WAGES

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 1,849,686$                 154,141 168,938 616,562 737,875 1,111,811 1,849,686 0

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 4,168$                        347 436 1,389 1,618 2,550 4,168 0

          Total SALARIES/WAGES 1,853,854 154,488 169,374 617,951 739,493 1,114,361 1,853,854 0

          FRINGES

FICA EXPENSE 141,501$                    11,792 12,822 47,167 55,920 85,580 141,501 0

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 68,383$                      5,699 5,587 22,794 24,402 43,981 68,383 0

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 42,496$                      3,541 3,306 14,165 14,502 27,994 42,496 0

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 8,752$                        729 817 2,917 3,495 5,257 8,752 0

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 42,391$                      3,533 5,161 14,130 20,612 21,779 42,391 0

401-K EXPENSE 19,875$                      1,656 2,145 6,625 9,128 10,747 19,875 0

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 584$                           49 61 195 227 357 584 0

          Total FRINGES 323,981 26,998 29,898 107,994 128,284 195,697 323,981 0

     Total PERSONNEL 2,177,835 181,486 199,272 725,945 867,777 1,310,058 2,177,835 0

     OTHER THAN PERSONNEL

OFFICE SUPPLIES 914$                           76 0 305 231 684 914 0

PARKING LOT RENTAL 164$                           14 17 55 70 95 164 0

POSTAGE 6,252$                        521 190 2,084 1,405 4,847 6,252 0

DUPLICATING & PRINTING 1,836$                        153 143 612 472 1,364 1,836 0

INTERNET SERVICE 191$                           16 28 64 84 107 191 0

TELEPHONE 36$                             3 2 12 9 27 36 0

Computer & Software Expense 11,090$                      924 1,301 3,697 5,763 5,327 11,090 0

MEETING EXPENSE 73$                             6 24 73 73 0

CONFERENCE EXPENSE -$                           0 0 0 0 0

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 50$                             4 17 50 50 0

Staff Development 102$                           9 34 102 102 0

LOCAL TRAVEL 12,149$                      1,012 484 4,050 1,947 10,202 12,149 0

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL -$                           0 0 0 0 0

STAFF IMMUNIZATIONS 9,318$                        777 379 3,106 1,163 8,155 9,318 0

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 201$                           17 0 67 0 201 201 0

BACKGROUND CHECKS 5,651$                        471 39 1,884 571 5,080 5,651 0

PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 10,067$                      839 1,185 3,356 4,526 5,541 10,067 0

ADVERTISING 1,652$                        138 0 551 152 1,500 1,652 0

BUILDING ALLOCATION 7,223$                        602 534 2,408 2,036 5,187 7,223 0

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONNEL 66,970 5,581 4,303 22,323 18,428 48,542 66,970 0

     CONTRACTUAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 1,994$                        166 222 665 886 1,108 1,994 0

     Total INKIND 1,994 166 222 665 886 1,108 1,994 0

     ADMINISTRATION

FINANCIAL AUDIT 6,151$                        513 0 2,050 0 6,151 6,151 0

PAYROLL PROCESSING 13,511$                      1,126 587 4,504 7,300 6,211 13,511 0

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 181,317$                    15,110 18,639 60,439 71,356 109,961 181,317 0

     Total ADMINISTRATION 200,979 16,748 19,226 66,993 78,656 122,323 200,979 0

Total EXPENSES 2,447,778 203,982 223,023 815,926 965,747 1,482,031 2,447,778 0

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 221,361 18,447 (6,598) 73,787 100,154 131,266 231,420 (10,059)

MEDICAID-APR-2022



CAPCO

Income Statement

6/1/2021 - 5/31/2022 ECD GRANTS

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM TOTAL BUDGET 4/1/2022 4/30/202
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

HSP - Head Start

REVENUE

     GRANT REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE 1,450,936 120,911 136,710 1,330,025 1,417,771 33,165 1,450,936 0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 1,450,936 120,911 136,710 1,330,025 1,417,771 33,165 1,450,936 0

     OTHER REVENUE

SPECIAL NEEDS SERVICE REIMBURSEMENT 0 0 2,400 0 17,090 0 17,090 -17,090

OTHER INCOME 0 0 0 0 0 45,900 45,900 -45,900

CASH DONATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

INKIND DONATIONS 590,566 49,214 0 541,352 190,688 80,529 271,217 319,349

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 590,566 49,214 2,400 541,352 207,778 126,429 334,207 256,359

Total REVENUE 2,041,502 170,125 139,110 1,871,377 1,625,549 159,594 1,785,143 256,359

EXPENSES

     PERSONELL

          WAGES/SALARIES

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 1,020,820 85,068 82,558 935,752 903,711 23,728 927,439 93,381

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 26,023 2,169 2,810 23,854 29,012 2,666 31,678 -5,655

          Total WAGES/SALARIES 1,046,843 87,237 85,368 959,606 932,723 26,394 959,117 87,726

          FRINGES

FICA EXPENSE 79,984 6,665 5,949 73,319 65,147 1,682 66,829 13,155

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 38,654 3,221 2,730 35,433 32,113 637 32,750 5,904

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 7,508 626 1,026 6,882 9,531 264 9,795 -2,287

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 2,687 224 209 2,463 2,518 200 2,718 -31

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 49,789 4,149 9,657 45,640 119,214 9,661 128,875 -79,086

401-K EXPENSE 22,116 1,843 1,601 20,273 18,473 522 18,995 3,121

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 394 33 393 361 4,062 373 4,435 -4,041

          Total FRINGES 201,132 16,761 21,565 184,371 251,057 13,340 264,397 -63,265

     Total PERSONELL 1,247,975 103,998 106,932 1,143,977 1,183,780 39,734 1,223,514 24,461

     MATERIALS

PROGRAM MATERIALS 0 0 988 988 -988

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 6,076 506 11,914 5,570 23,155 3,693 26,848 -20,772

MEDICAL SUPPLIES 1,500 125 1,375 0 0 1,500

DISABILITY SUPPLIES 1,000 83 0 917 270 0 270 730

EDUCATIONAL SUPPLIES 7,500 625 419 6,875 4,067 955 5,022 2,478

     Total MATERIALS 16,076 1,340 12,333 14,736 27,492 5,637 33,128 -17,052

     OTHER THAN PERSONELL

FOOD & FOOD SUPPLIES 12,827 1,069 1,301 11,758 22,888 5,102 27,991 -15,164

SPEECH SERVICES 500 42 0 458 665 0 665 -165

DENTAL SERVICES 500 42 458 0 0 500

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0 0

PARENT SERVICES 2,000 167 0 1,833 428 90 518 1,482

FAMILY EMPOWERMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0

CHILD ACCIDENT INSURANCE 700 58 46 642 509 46 555 145

VEHICLE INSURANCE 2,600 217 206 2,383 2,172 206 2,378 222

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,500 125 150 1,375 450 565 1,015 485

VEHICLE FUEL 1,500 125 140 1,375 758 39 797 703

VEHICLE REGISTRATION 200 17 0 183 210 0 210 -10

INTERNET SERVICE 3,500 292 281 3,208 3,059 364 3,423 77

CENTER TELEPHONE 5,000 417 82 4,583 4,704 511 5,215 -215

Computer & Software Expense 5,000 417 912 4,583 14,149 2,276 16,425 -11,425

ECD-APR-2022_policy council HSP



BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM TOTAL BUDGET 4/1/2022 4/30/202
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

HSP - Head Start

MEETING EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 884 0 884 -884

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 1,000 83 369 917 550 0 550 450

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 1,000 83 0 917 3,327 185 3,511 -2,511

TEACHER TRAININGS 1,500 125 1,375 0 0 1,500

Staff Development 500 42 0 458 1,481 1,201 2,681 -2,181

LOCAL TRAVEL 1,000 83 28 917 596 33 629 371

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 1,000 83 998 917 998 2,945 3,943 -2,943

POLICY COUNCIL EXPENSE 1,000 83 917 0 0 1,000

STAFF IMMUNIZATIONS 500 42 0 458 248 0 248 252

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 9,000 750 617 8,250 1,627 13 1,640 7,360

BACKGROUND CHECKS 1,200 100 50 1,100 409 0 409 791

PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 3,000 250 0 2,750 2,013 82 2,095 905

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 500 42 458 0 0 500

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONELL 57,027 4,752 5,180 52,275 62,124 13,657 75,781 -18,754

     CONTRACTUAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 4,100 342 120 3,758 16,410 4,960 21,370 -17,270

     Total CONTRACTUAL 4,100 342 120 3,758 16,410 4,960 21,370 -17,270

     INKIND

VOLUNTEERS/INTERNS 0 0 0 0 16,330 30,913 47,243 -47,243

VOLUNTEERS-PROFESSIONALS 59,057 4,921 0 54,136 125,416 33,959 159,375 -100,318

INKIND DONATIONS 477,151 39,763 0 437,388 11,652 -5,352 6,300 470,851

INKIND DONATED SPACE 54,358 4,530 0 49,828 37,291 21,008 58,299 -3,941

     Total INKIND 590,566 49,214 0 541,352 190,688 80,529 271,217 319,349

     SPACE

PROGRAM RENT 54,358 4,530 6,923 49,828 51,975 6,923 58,898 -4,540

PROGRAM UTILITIES 2,500 208 191 2,292 2,854 187 3,040 -540

SMAIN DEPRECIATION 6,300 525 5,775 6,300 6,300 0

SMAIN BLG ALLOCATION 30,000 2,500 4,963 27,500 59,169 0 59,169 -29,169

MAINTENANCE ALLOCATION 2,000 167 386 1,833 1,498 0 1,498 502

     Total Space 95,158 7,930 12,463 87,228 115,496 13,410 128,906 -33,748

     ADMINISTRATION

OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,000 333 112 3,667 2,728 689 3,417 583

COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 500 42 19 458 163 21 184 316

PARKING LOT RENTAL 200 17 19 183 190 19 208 -8

JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE 1,000 83 251 917 948 232 1,180 -180

BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 2,620 0 2,620 -2,620

TRASH REMOVAL 0 0 102 0 1,074 102 1,176 -1,176

FINANCIAL AUDIT 3,500 292 0 3,208 4,528 0 4,528 -1,028

PAYROLL PROCESSING 4,500 375 284 4,125 4,587 329 4,916 -416

POSTAGE 1,200 100 91 1,100 811 43 855 345

DUPLICATING & PRINTING 5,000 417 223 4,583 2,863 204 3,067 1,933

TELEPHONE 1,200 100 431 1,100 1,357 28 1,385 -185

ADVERTISING 1,500 125 0 1,375 1,282 0 1,282 218

OTHER EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0 0

BUILDING ALLOCATION 8,000 667 549 7,333 6,408 0 6,408 1,592

     Total ADMINISTRATION 30,600 2,550 2,081 28,050 29,559 1,667 31,226 -626

Total EXPENSES 2,041,502 170,125 139,110 1,871,377 1,625,549 159,594 1,785,143 256,359

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ECD-APR-2022_policy council HSP



CAPCO

Income Statement

6/1/2021 - 5/31/2022 ECD GRANTS

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

TTA - HEAD START TRAINING & TECH ASST

REVENUE

     GRANT REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE 13,645 1,137 1,987 12,508 16,511 -2,866 13,645 0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 13,645 1,137 1,987 12,508 16,511 -2,866 13,645 0

Total REVENUE 13,645 1,137 1,987 12,508 16,511 -2,866 13,645 0

EXPENSES

     MATERIALS

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 2,450 204 0 2,246 0 0 0 2,450

     Total MATERIALS 2,450 204 0 2,246 0 0 0 2,450

     OTHER THAN PERSONELL

MEETING EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 8,500 0 8,500 -8,500

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 3,000 250 360 2,750 3,889 -508 3,381 -381

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 6,195 516 1,627 5,679 4,122 -2,358 1,764 4,431

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONELL 9,195 766 1,987 8,429 16,511 -2,866 13,645 -4,450

     CONTRACTUAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 2,000 167 0 1,833 0 0 0 2,000

     Total CONTRACTUAL 2,000 167 0 1,833 0 0 0 2,000

Total EXPENSES 13,645 1,137 1,987 12,508 16,511 -2,866 13,645 0

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ECD-APR-2022_policy council TTA



CAPCO

Income Statement

6/1/2021 - 5/31/2022 ECD GRANTS   

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

EHS - Early Head Start

REVENUE

     GRANT REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE 1,342,309 111,859 70,728 1,230,450 1,117,393 224,916 1,342,309 0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 1,342,309 111,859 70,728 1,230,450 1,117,393 224,916 1,342,309 0

     OTHER REVENUE

OTHER INCOME 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

INKIND DONATIONS 165,384 13,782 7,594 151,602 58,213 13,877 72,090 93,294

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 165,384 13,782 7,594 151,602 58,213 13,877 72,090 93,294

Total REVENUE 1,507,693 125,641 78,322 1,382,052 1,175,606 238,793 1,414,399 93,294

EXPENSES

     PERSONELL

          WAGES/SALARIES

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 932,325 77,694 42,111 854,631 677,713 157,900 835,614 96,711

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 58,004 4,834 3,813 53,170 45,704 3,086 48,790 9,214

          Total WAGES/SALARIES 990,329 82,527 45,925 907,802 723,417 160,986 884,404 105,925

          FRINGES

FICA EXPENSE 75,539 6,295 3,025 69,244 49,285 11,413 60,698 14,841

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 36,505 3,042 1,393 33,463 24,237 5,534 29,771 6,734

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 6,752 563 326 6,189 5,034 1,228 6,262 490

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 2,336 195 106 2,141 1,571 123 1,694 642

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 33,100 2,758 6,040 30,342 76,466 6,041 82,507 -49,407

401-K EXPENSE 15,649 1,304 726 14,345 12,363 1,210 13,573 2,076

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 301 25 534 276 6,399 432 6,831 -6,530

          Total FRINGES 170,182 14,182 12,151 156,000 175,354 25,981 201,335 -31,153

     Total PERSONELL 1,160,511 96,709 58,076 1,063,802 898,771 186,967 1,085,739 74,772

     MATERIALS

PROGRAM MATERIALS 0 0 0 0 104 0 104 -104

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 9,021 752 5,265 8,269 18,237 4,264 22,501 -13,480

MEDICAL SUPPLIES 750 63 688 0 0 750

DISABILITY SUPPLIES 500 42 0 458 174 0 174 326

EDUCATIONAL SUPPLIES 3,000 250 842 2,750 2,837 13,682 16,519 -13,519

     Total MATERIALS 13,271 1,106 6,107 12,165 21,352 17,946 39,297 -26,026

     OTHER THAN PERSONELL

FOOD & FOOD SUPPLIES 27,034 2,253 1,309 24,781 21,091 6,754 27,845 -811

SPEECH SERVICES 250 21 229 0 0 250

DENTAL SERVICES 250 21 229 0 0 250

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0 0

PARENT SERVICES 750 63 0 688 215 22 237 513

FAMILY EMPOWERMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0

CHILD ACCIDENT INSURANCE 230 19 27 211 299 27 326 -96

VEHICLE INSURANCE 2,600 217 287 2,383 3,016 287 3,303 -703

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,000 83 440 917 980 334 1,315 -315

VEHICLE FUEL 2,000 167 -49 1,833 344 57 401 1,599

VEHICLE REGISTRATION 200 17 0 183 194 0 194 6

INTERNET SERVICE 3,300 275 289 3,025 3,221 430 3,650 -350

CENTER TELEPHONE 1,200 100 56 1,100 2,885 365 3,250 -2,050

Computer & Software Expense 2,000 167 471 1,833 7,017 2,531 9,547 -7,547

MEETING EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 449 0 449 -449

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 500 42 216 458 323 0 323 177

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 750 63 0 688 1,754 1,009 2,763 -2,013

TEACHER TRAININGS 750 63 688 0 0 750

Staff Development 0 0 0 0 1,035 468 1,503 -1,503

ECD-APR-2022_policy council EHS



BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

EHS - Early Head Start

LOCAL TRAVEL 750 63 28 688 257 39 296 454

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 500 42 458 296 296 204

POLICY COUNCIL EXPENSE 500 42 458 0 0 500

STAFF IMMUNIZATIONS 250 21 0 229 124 286 410 -160

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 3,000 250 362 2,750 824 0 824 2,176

BACKGROUND CHECKS 750 63 0 688 279 50 329 421

PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 3,500 292 0 3,208 4,220 298 4,519 -1,019

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 100 8 92 0 0 100

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONELL 52,164 4,347 3,437 47,817 48,528 13,253 61,781 -9,617

     CONTRACTUAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 5,000 417 1,691 4,583 19,983 3,686 23,669 -18,669

     Total CONTRACTUAL 5,000 417 1,691 4,583 19,983 3,686 23,669 -18,669

     INKIND

VOLUNTEERS/INTERNS 0 0 0 0 2,672 0 2,672 -2,672

VOLUNTEERS-PROFESSIONALS 115,388 9,616 0 105,772 7,230 0 7,230 108,158

INKIND DONATIONS 7,396 616 0 6,780 7,343 0 7,343 53

INKIND DONATED SPACE 42,600 3,550 0 39,050 40,968 13,877 54,845 -12,245

     Total INKIND 165,384 13,782 0 151,602 58,213 13,877 72,090 93,294

     SPACE

PROGRAM RENT 61,645 5,137 797 56,508 45,258 0 45,258 16,387

PROGRAM UTILITIES 18,000 1,500 2,258 16,500 21,471 1,464 22,935 -4,935

SMAIN DEPRECIATION 4,400 367 4,033 0 0 4,400

SMAIN BLG ALLOCATION 7,000 583 492 6,417 5,865 0 5,865 1,135

MAINTENANCE ALLOCATION 2,000 167 3,275 1,833 29,814 0 29,814 -27,814

     Total SPACE 93,045 7,754 6,822 85,291 102,408 1,464 103,872 -10,827

     ADMINISTRATION

OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,000 167 573 1,833 2,232 357 2,589 -589

COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 537 45 134 492 1,347 132 1,480 -943

PARKING LOT RENTAL 131 11 14 120 146 14 160 -29

JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE 1,000 83 599 917 2,977 238 3,215 -2,215

BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0 0 60 0 6,198 417 6,614 -6,614

TRASH REMOVAL 1,400 117 60 1,283 631 60 691 709

FINANCIAL AUDIT 2,700 225 0 2,475 4,253 0 4,253 -1,553

PAYROLL PROCESSING 2,800 233 151 2,567 3,015 191 3,206 -406

POSTAGE 500 42 25 458 259 3 261 239

DUPLICATING & PRINTING 2,000 167 101 1,833 1,638 103 1,742 258

TELEPHONE 1,000 83 258 917 469 21 491 509

ADVERTISING 250 21 0 229 773 65 838 -588

OTHER EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0 0

BUILDING DEPRECIATION 0 0 0 0 0 0

BUILDING ALLOCATION 4,000 333 214 3,667 2,412 0 2,412 1,588

     Total ADMINISTRATION 18,318 1,527 2,190 16,792 26,351 1,601 27,952 -9,634

Total EXPENSES 1,507,693 125,641 78,322 1,382,052 1,175,606 238,793 1,414,399 93,294

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ECD-APR-2022_policy council EHS



CAPCO

Income Statement

6/1/2021 - 5/31/2022 ECD GRANTS

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET
YTD 

ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

ETA - EARLY HS TRAINING & TECH. ASST

REVENUE

     GRANT REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE 32,755 2,730 514 30,025 23,544 9,211 32,755 0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 32,755 2,730 514 30,025 23,544 9,211 32,755 0

Total REVENUE 32,755 2,730 514 30,025 23,544 9,211 32,755 0

EXPENSES

     MATERIALS

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 3,600 300 3,300 0 3,600

     Total MATERIALS 3,600 300 3,300 0 0 3,600

     OTHER THAN PERSONELL

MEETING EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 10,051 0 10,051 -10,051

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 6,800 567 270 6,233 6,339 508 6,847 -47

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 17,355 1,446 244 15,909 7,154 8,702 15,857 1,498

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONELL 24,155 2,013 514 22,142 23,544 9,210 32,755 -8,600

     CONTRACTUAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 5,000 417 4,583 0 5,000

     Total CONTRACTUAL 5,000 417 4,583 0 0 5,000

Total EXPENSES 32,755 2,730 514 30,025 23,544 9,210 32,755 0

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ECD-APR-2022_policy council ETA



CAPCO

Income Statement

6/1/2021 - 5/31/2022 ECD GRANTS

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

MAG - Management and General

REVENUE

     GRANT REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE 220,481 18,373 20,072 202,108 192,026 28,455 220,481 0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 220,481 18,373 20,072 202,108 192,026 28,455 220,481 0

Total REVENUE 220,481 18,373 20,072 202,108 192,026 28,455 220,481 0

     ADMINISTRATION

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 220,481 18,373 20,072 202,108 192,026 28,455 220,481 0

     Total ADMINISTRATION 220,481 18,373 20,072 202,108 192,026 28,455 220,481 0

Total EXPENSES 220,481 18,373 20,072 202,108 192,026 28,455 220,481 0

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ECD-APR-2022_policy council MAG



CAPCO

Income Statement

6/1/2021 - 5/31/2022 ECD GRANTS

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

UPK - Universal Pre-K

REVENUE

     GRANT REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE 250,800 22,770 18,480 250,470 186,450 55,440 241,890 8,910

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 250,800 22,770 18,480 250,470 186,450 55,440 241,890 8,910

     OTHER REVENUE    
SERVICE FEES 0 0 0 0 0 0

SALARY REIMBURSEMENTS 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER INCOME 9,170 9,170 -9,170

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,170 0

Total REVENUE 250,800 22,770 18,480 250,470 186,450 55,440 251,060 8,910

EXPENSES

     PERSONELL

          WAGES/SALARIES

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 153,268 12,772 8,111 140,496 104,579 18,655 123,234 30,034

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 3,186 266 252 2,921 3,001 579 3,579 -393

          Total WAGES/SALARIES 156,454 13,038 8,362 143,416 107,580 19,234 126,813 29,641

          FRINGES

FICA EXPENSE 11,957 996 568 10,961 7,338 1,307 8,645 3,312

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 5,778 482 268 5,297 3,728 617 4,344 1,434

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 950 79 43 871 610 98 708 242

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 306 26 18 281 240 41 281 25

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 9,630 803 1,158 8,828 17,688 1,158 18,846 -9,216

401-K EXPENSE 3,420 285 195 3,135 2,465 449 2,914 506

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 382 32 35 350 420 81 501 -119

          Total FRINGES 32,423 2,702 2,285 29,721 32,489 3,751 36,240 -3,817

     Total PERSONELL 188,877 15,740 10,648 173,137 140,068 22,984 163,053 25,824

MATERIALS

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 7,500 625 6,875 1,000 1,000 6,500

EDUCATIONAL SUPPLIES 0 0 0 0 146 146 -146

     Total MATERIALS 7,500 625 0 6,875 146 1,000 1,146 6,354

     OTHER THAN PERSONELL

FOOD & FOOD SUPPLIES 0 0 0 0 0 0

INTERNET SERVICE 50 4 4 46 44 4 47 3

CENTER TELEPHONE 0 0 9 0 84 9 93 -93

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 400 33 0 367 1,500 0 1,500 -1,100

TEACHER TRAININGS 2,000 167 1,833 2,000 2,000 0

Staff Development 0 0 0 0 0 0

LOCAL TRAVEL 1,000 83 4 917 28 50 78 922

Out of Town Travel 2,000 167 691 1,833 691 1,309 2,000 0

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,100 92 1,008 1,100 1,100 0

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONELL 6,550 546 708 6,004 2,347 4,471 6,818 -268

     CONTRACTUAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Total CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     SPACE

PROGRAM RENT 18,000 1,500 4,820 16,500 22,073 2,197 24,270 -6,270

SMAIN BLG ALLOCATION 0 0 88 0 1,053 88 1,141 -1,141

     Total SPACE 18,000 1,500 4,908 16,500 23,126 2,285 25,411 -7,411

     ADMINISTRATION

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 0 45 0 450 250 700 -700

COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 400 33 6 367 60 6 66 334

PARKING LOT RENTAL 25 2 23 0 0 25

BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0 0

FINANCIAL AUDIT 700 58 0 642 711 0 711 -11

PAYROLL PROCESSING 500 42 23 458 520 -20 500 0

POSTAGE 0 0

TELEPHONE 100 8 0 92 3 20 23 77

ADVERTISING 0 0 0 0 0 0

BUILDING DEPRECIATION 0 0 0 0 0 0

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 18,287 1,524 1,476 16,763 11,806 2,187 13,993 4,294

BUILDING ALLOCATION 1,500 125 60 25 459 100 559 941

     Total ADMINISTRATION 21,512 1,793 1,609 18,370 14,010 2,542 16,552 4,960

Total EXPENSES 242,439 20,203 17,873 220,886 179,697 33,283 212,980 29,459

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 8,361 2,567 607 29,584 6,753 22,157 38,080 -20,549

ECD-APR-2022_policy council UPK



CAPCO

Income Statement

4/1/21 to 3/31/22 WAP
 

Extended to June 2022

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/30/2022  4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

21.22WAP - 2021-2022 WAP

REVENUE

     GRANTS

GRANT REVENUE 942,818 78,568 92,694 942,818 855,771 87,047 942,818 0

     Total Grants 942,818 78,568 92,694 942,818 855,771 87,047 942,818 0

Total Revenue 942,818 78,568 92,694 942,818 855,771 87,047 942,818 0

EXPENSES

     Materials

PROGRAM MATERIALS 91,500 7,625 6,977 91,500 124,427 879 125,306 -33,806

SUBCONTRACT MATERIALS 8,500 708 0 8,500 8,919 2,184 11,103 -2,603

               Total 100,000 8,333 6,977 100,000 133,347 3,063 136,409 -36,409

100,000 8,333 6,977 100,000 133,347 3,063 136,409 -36,409

     Personnel

          Agency Labor

               Agency Salaries

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 380,726 31,727 30,509 380,726 312,584 40,100 352,684 28,042

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 8,951 746 1,655 8,951 24,292 3,129 27,421 -18,470

               Total Agency Salaries 389,677 32,473 32,163 389,677 336,876 43,229 380,105 9,572

FICA EXPENSE 29,126 2,427 2,304 29,126 24,143 3,068 27,210 1,915

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 14,075 1,173 1,032 14,075 11,755 1,482 13,238 837

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 20,051 1,671 1,175 20,051 13,419 2,014 15,433 4,618

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 932 78 44 932 591 341 932 0

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 34,994 2,916 2,209 34,994 22,557 2,209 24,766 10,228

401-K EXPENSE 9,518 793 660 9,518 6,809 873 7,682 1,836

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 4,186 349 232 4,186 3,401 438 3,839 347

112,882 9,407 7,656 112,882 82,675 10,426 93,101 19,781

          Total Agency Labor 502,559 41,880 39,820 502,559 419,551 53,655 473,206 29,353

          Subcontracted Labor

SUBCONTRACT LABOR 4,444 370 0 4,444 5,488 0 5,488 -1,044

          Total Subcontracted Labor 4,444 370 0 4,444 5,488 0 5,488 -1,044

     Total Personnel 507,003 42,250 39,820 507,003 425,039 53,655 478,694 28,309

     Program Support

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 5,000 417 812 5,000 8,111 8,111 -3,111

OFFICE SUPPLIES 20,500 1,708 481 20,500 18,017 2,483 20,500 0

VEHICLE INSURANCE 6,500 542 537 6,500 4,567 1,073 5,640 860

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 3,350 279 676 3,350 26,089 2,500 28,589 -25,239

VEHICLE FUEL 8,500 708 1,593 8,500 14,162 3,186 17,349 -8,849

VEHICLE REGISTRATION 0 0 0 0 241 241 -241

PROGRAM RENT 29,500 2,458 1,087 29,500 13,341 2,174 15,515 13,985

PARKING LOT RENTAL 100 8 0 100 86 86 14

PROGRAM UTILITIES 1,322 4,113 2,644 6,757 -6,757

JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE 0 115 115 -115

BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 176 176 -176

TRASH REMOVAL 176 1,699 1,699 -1,699

POSTAGE 1,200 100 34 1,200 941 941 259

ESD-APR-2022 WAP



BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
TOTAL 

BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/30/2022  4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

DUPLICATING & PRINTING 450 38 2 450 24 24 427

INTERNET SERVICE 25,000 2,083 48 25,000 710 710 24,290

TELEPHONE 0 0 174 0 12,148 348 12,496 -12,496

Computer & Software Expense 0 0 234 0 18,790 468 19,257 -19,257

Staff Development 1,100 92 0 1,100 1,627 1,627 -527

LOCAL TRAVEL 1,500 125 0 1,500 287 287 1,213

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 0 0 49 0 49 49 -49

TOOLS EXPENSE 12,500 1,042 1,078 12,500 12,908 567 13,475 -975

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,500 125 0 1,500 629 1,445 2,074 -574

BACKGROUND CHECKS 0 0 0 0 350 350 -350

PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 0 0 0 0 1,995 1,995 -1,995

ADVERTISING 1,500 125 0 1,500 1,186 1,186 314

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 0 0 2,495 0 4,747 4,747 -4,747

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 8,500 708 0 8,500 0 0 0 8,500

BUILDING ALLOCATION 1,500 125 0 1,500 1,427 1,427 73

MAINTENANCE ALLOCATION 0 0 533 0 11,214 251 11,466 -11,466

     Total Program Support 128,200 10,683 11,331 128,200 159,751 17,139 176,890 -48,690

     Audit

FINANCIAL AUDIT 1,804 150 0 1,804 2,920 0 2,920 -1,116

     Total Audit 1,804 150 0 1,804 2,920 0 2,920 -1,116

     T & TA

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 10,000 833 0 10,000 10,189 0 10,189 -189

     Total T & TA 10,000 833 0 10,000 10,189 0 10,189 -189

     HEALTH AND SAFETY

HEALTH AND SAFETY WAGES 0 0 650 0 16,759 16,759 -16,759

HEALTH AND SAFETY 40,000 3,333 1,142 40,000 25,403 32 25,435 14,565

HEALTH & SAFETY-SUBMATERIAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HEALTH & SAFETY SUBLABOR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Total Health and Safety 40,000 3,333 1,792 40,000 42,162 32 42,194 -2,194

LIABILITY INSURANCE 100 8 0 100 100 0 100 0

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 85,000 7,083 24,710 85,000 24,710 0 24,710 60,290

     Administration

PAYROLL PROCESSING 1,000 83 441 1,000 979 21 1,000 0

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 69,711 5,809 7,624 69,711 56,573 13,138 69,711 0

     Total Administration 70,711 5,893 8,065 70,711 57,552 13,159 70,711 0

Total Expenses 942,818 78,568 92,694 942,818 855,771 87,047 942,818 0

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ESD-APR-2022 WAP



CAPCO

Income Statement

4/1/21 to 3/31/22 PI

ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT

21.22PI - 2021-2022 Program Income

REVENUE

     GRANTS

Current PY Program Income 0

     Total Grants 0 0 0 0

     Other Revenue

Prior Year Revenue 12,048 0 12,048

     Total Other Revenue 0 12,048 0 12,048

Total Revenue 0 12,048 0 12,048

EXPENSES

     Materials

PROGRAM MATERIALS 1,202 1,202

SUBCONTRACT MATERIALS 0

               Total 0 1,202 0 1,202

     Total 0 1,202 0 1,202

     Personnel

          Agency Labor

               Agency Salaries

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 0 5,063 5,063

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 0 71 71

               Total Agency Salaries 0 5,134 0 5,134

               Fringes

FICA EXPENSE 0 449 449

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 0 194 194

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 0 309 309

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 0 10 10

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 0 330 330

401-K EXPENSE 0 137 137

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 0 10 10

               Total Fringes 0 1,440 0 1,440

          Total Agency Labor 0 6,575 0 6,575

          Subcontracted Labor

SUBCONTRACT LABOR

          Total Subcontracted Labor 0 0 0 0

     Total Personnel 0 6,575 0 6,575

     Program Support

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 0 0

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0 1,295 1,295

Computer & Software Expense 0 1,073 1,073

     Total Program Support 0 2,368 0 2,368

     HEALTH AND SAFETY

HEALTH AND SAFETY 0 809 0 809

HEALTH & SAFETY-SUBMATERIAL 0 0 0 0

HEALTH & SAFETY SUBLABOR 0 0 0 0

0 809 0 809

     Administration

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 0 1,095 0 1,095

     Total Administration 0 1,095 0 1,095

Total Expenses 0 12,048 0 12,048

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0

ESD-APR-2022 PI



CAPCO

Income Statement

10/1/2021-9/30/2022 FAMILY DEVELOPMENT CSBG GRANTS

PROPOSED BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM TOTAL BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/30/2022  4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

21.22CSBG - 2021 -2022 CSBG

REVENUE

     GRANT REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE 244,739 20,395 20,995 203,949 136,676 108,063 244,739 0

Prior Year Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Total GRANT REVENUE 244,739 20,395 20,995 203,949 136,676 108,063 244,739 0

     OTHER REVENUE

OTHER INCOME 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CASH DONATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

INKIND DONATIONS 60,591 5,049 19,442 50,493 124,732 0 124,732 -64,141

     Total OTHER REVENUE 60,591 5,049 19,442 50,493 124,732 0 124,732 -64,141

Total REVENUE 305,330 25,444 40,438 254,442 261,408 108,063 369,471 -64,141

EXPENSES

     PERSONNEL

          SALARIES/WAGES

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 123,123 10,260 11,273 102,602 68,321 54,802 123,123 0

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 10,335 861 912 8,612 6,570 3,765 10,335 0

          Total SALARIES/WAGES 133,457 11,121 12,185 111,215 74,891 58,566 133,457 0

          FRINGES

FICA EXPENSE 10,688 891 850 8,906 5,381 4,134 9,515 1,172

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 5,165 430 373 4,304 2,544 1,812 4,356 809

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 454 38 23 378 341 113 454 0

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 321 27 26 268 187 132 319 3

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 9,052 754 695 7,543 5,152 3,474 8,626 426

401-K EXPENSE 3,472 289 255 2,894 1,704 1,238 2,942 530

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 1,447 121 128 1,206 920 527 1,447 0

          Total FRINGES 30,599 2,550 2,350 25,499 16,228 11,430 27,659 2,940

     Total PERSONNEL 164,056 13,671 14,535 136,713 91,119 69,997 161,116 2,940

     OTHER THAN PERSONNEL

PROGRAM MATERIALS 2,000 167 0 1,667 41 1,713 1,754 246

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 0 0 0 0 231 0 231 -231

OFFICE SUPPLIES 800 67 0 667 439 361 800 0

Direct Beneficiary Costs 2,000 167 744 1,667 1,710 372 2,082 -82

FOOD & FOOD SUPPLIES 100 8 0 83 115 0 115 -15

COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 60 5 4 50 27 33 60 0

VEHICLE INSURANCE 1,680 140 0 1,400 1,805 0 1,805 -125

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,500 125 0 1,250 791 709 1,500 0

VEHICLE FUEL 100 8 180 83 -726 826 100 0

VEHICLE REGISTRATION 260 22 0 217 371 371 -111

PARKING LOT RENTAL 600 50 51 500 360 240 600 0

BOARD EXPENDITURES 500 42 0 417 148 352 500 0

POSTAGE 800 67 50 667 494 306 800 0

DUPLICATING & PRINTING 800 67 163 667 953 816 1,769 -969

INTERNET SERVICE 1,400 117 43 1,167 338 1,062 1,400 0

TELEPHONE 150 13 15 125 100 50 150 0

Computer & Software Expense 12,100 1,008 582 10,083 4,490 7,610 12,100 0

MEETING EXPENSE 500 42 129 417 229 271 500 0

CSBG-APR-2022 CSBG



PROPOSED BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM TOTAL BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/30/2022  4/30/2022 FORECAST
TOTAL 

CONTRACT
REMAINING

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 2,000 167 0 1,667 99 1,901 2,000 0

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 1,000 83 0 833 145 855 1,000 0

Staff Development 500 42 0 417 194 306 500 0

LOCAL TRAVEL 265 22 0 221 167 98 265 0

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 3,000 250 0 2,500 679 2,321 3,000 0

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 3,400 283 1,483 2,833 4,278 4,278 -878

BACKGROUND CHECKS 0 0 0 0 114 114 -114

PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 0 0 0 0

ADVERTISING 200 17 0 167 862 862 -662

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 0 0 0 0 0 0

BUILDING ALLOCATION 22,000 1,833 909 18,333 14,097 7,903 22,000 0

MAINTENANCE ALLOCATION 0 0 0 0

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONNEL 57,715 4,810 4,354 48,096 32,551 28,104 60,655 -2,940

     CONTRACTUAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 0 0 0 0 40 -40 0 0

     Total CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0 0 40 -40 0 0

     INKIND

FARMERS MARKET EBT EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

VOLUNTEERS/INTERNS 0 0 3,759 0 16,101 0 16,101 -16,101

INKIND DONATIONS 60,591 5,049 15,683 50,493 108,631 0 108,631 -48,040

     Total INKIND 60,591 5,049 19,442 50,493 124,732 0 124,732 -64,141

     ADMINISTRATION

FINANCIAL AUDIT 1,400 117 0 1,167 649 751 1,400 0

PAYROLL PROCESSING 700 58 35 583 297 403 700 0

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 20,868 1,739 2,072 17,390 12,020 8,848 20,868 0

     Total ADMINISTRATION 22,968 1,914 2,107 19,140 12,966 10,002 22,968 0

Total EXPENSES 305,330 25,444 40,438 254,442 261,408 108,063 369,471 -64,140

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CSBG-APR-2022 CSBG



   

Income Statement

10/1/2021 - 9/30/2022 WIC GRANT

BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM TOT BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST TOT CONTRACT REMAINING

WIC - WOMEN, INFANTS & CHILDREN

REVENUE

     GRANTS

GRANT REVENUE 375,808 31,317 20,664 219,221 190,226 185,582 375,808 0

     Total Grants 375,808 31,317 20,664 219,221 190,226 185,582 375,808 0

     Other Revenue

PASS THROUGH FUNDS-wic VOUCHERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

INKIND DONATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Total Other Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 375,808 31,317 20,664 219,221 190,226 185,582 375,808 0

EXPENSES

     Personnel

          Agency Salaries

SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 226,661 18,888 10,999 132,219 106,855 117,133 223,988 2,673

NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 14,918 1,243 745 8,702 8,465 6,453 14,918 0

          Total Agency Salaries 241,579 20,132 11,744 140,921 115,319 123,586 238,906 2,673

          Fringes

FICA EXPENSE 17,094 1,425 809 9,972 7,893 9,201 17,094 0

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 4,862 405 364 2,836 3,738 1,124 4,862 0

WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 756 63 75 441 382 374 756 0

DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 340 28 28 198 178 162 340 0

GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 28,705 2,392 1,946 16,745 13,785 14,920 28,705 0

401-K EXPENSE 5,904 492 299 3,444 2,636 3,268 5,904 0

Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 0 0 104 0 1,185 -1,185 0 0

          Total Fringes 57,661 4,805 3,625 33,636 29,797 27,864 57,661 0

     Total Personnel 299,240 24,937 15,369 174,557 145,116 151,450 296,567 2,673

     OTPS

          Space

PROGRAM RENT 1,200 100 0 700 600 600 1,200 0

PARKING LOT RENTAL 0 50 0 348 249 597 -597

BUILDING ALLOCATION 32,665 2,722 2,702 19,055 21,322 10,697 32,019 646

          Total 33,865 2,822 2,752 19,755 22,270 11,546 33,816 49

          Program Operations

PROGRAM MATERIALS 0 0 0 0 0 0

PROGRAM SUPPLIES 0 0 0 0 0

OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000 83 583 1,000 1,000 0

MEDICAL SUPPLIES 500 42 292 500 500 0

EDUCATIONAL SUPPLIES 500 42 292 500 500 0

POSTAGE 1,500 125 192 875 1,423 77 1,500 0

DUPLICATING & PRINTING 500 42 105 292 595 -95 500 0

INTERNET SERVICE 1,800 150 47 1,050 331 1,469 1,800 0

TELEPHONE 660 55 115 385 853 573 1,425 -765

MEETING EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 0 0 350 -350 0 0

PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 0 0 0 0 0

WIC VOUCHER EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0

WIC-WIC-2022 WIC



BUDGET ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

LINE ITEM TOT BUDGET
 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

 4/1/2022 
4/30/2022

4/30/2022 4/30/2022 FORECAST TOT CONTRACT REMAINING

WIC - WOMEN, INFANTS & CHILDREN

INKIND DONATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

          Total Program Operations 6,460 538 459 3,768 3,551 3,674 7,225 -765

     Total OTPS 40,325 3,360 3,211 23,523 25,821 15,220 41,041 -716

     Travel

VEHICLE INSURANCE 900 75 79 525 528 372 900 0

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 450 38 0 263 0 450 450 0

VEHICLE FUEL 200 17 0 117 40 160 200 0

VEHICLE REGISTRATION 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

LOCAL TRAVEL 200 17 0 117 0 200 200 0

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Total Travel 1,750 146 79 1,021 569 1,181 1,750 0

     Equipment

BREAST PUMPS EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Total Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     Audit

FINANCIAL AUDIT 2,873 239 0 1,676 2,126 0 2,126 747

     Total Audit 2,873 239 0 1,676 2,126 0 2,126 747

     Other

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 1,200 100 102 700 866 334 1,200 0

Computer & Software Expense 0 0 105 0 1,923 525 2,448 -2,448

TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 243 20 0 142 450 0 450 -207

PAYROLL PROCESSING 840 70 55 490 573 267 840 0

Memberships 350 29 204 350 350 0

ADVERTISING 500 42 0 292 308 192 500 0

     Total Other 3,133 261 261 1,828 4,120 1,668 5,788 -2,655

     Administration

ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 28,487 2,374 1,745 16,617 12,474 16,013 28,487 0

     Total Administration 28,487 2,374 1,745 16,617 12,474 16,013 28,487 0

Total Expenses 375,808 31,317 20,664 219,221 190,226 185,533 375,759 49

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 0 0 0 0 49 49 -49

WIC-WIC-2022 WIC









Attachment B: B‐1 Expenditure Based Budget

Contractor FFY

Budget Period 4/1/20 to Contract #

(a) TOTAL CSBG ALLOCATION OF GRANT FUNDS (FEDERAL) $

1. $

2. $

3. $

4. $

5. $

6.

    Indirect Rate $

    De Minimis Rate $

    Admin. Cost/Rate $

$

DIRECT: ‐$                              

Description:

ADMIN: 2,320$                     

Description:

DIRECT: 78,855$                   

Description:

ADMIN: ‐$                              

Description:

MWBE Goal % 30% MBE Goal %

MWBE Goal Amt $ 39,422 WBE Goal %

Other Costs (from Attachment B‐3)

Administrative Costs

%

%

%

169,309

329,878

The MWBE Goal is applied to qualified purchases made during the period specified within this contract.

MBE Goal Amount $

WBE Goal Amount $

19711

19711

15%

15%

C1001793

328,878

2020‐2022Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

CSBG CARES Grant Funds this FY

Cost Categories

Personnel Services (from Attachment B‐2)

Delegate Agencies (Subcontractors)

Contractual Services/Audit

Equipment Purchase/Lease

TOTAL

79,394

2,320

78,855

ATTACHMENT B

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT ‐ CARES

B‐1 Budget Summary

CSBG CARES Grant 

Funds

Descriptions and amounts of Contractual Services/Audit and Equipment Purchase/Lease expenses included in Cost Categories 3 

and 4:

TO AVOID ROUNDING ERRORS ON THESE DOCUMENTS, PLEASE ROUND UP.  ENTER WHOLE NUMBERS ONLY.

DO NOT INCLUDE DECIMALS OR ANY CALCULATIONS!

[These figures should auto‐fill from the MWBE Goals Calculation page; please verify accuracy of the numbers]

9/30/22

3.  Contractual Services/Audit 

4.  Equipment Purchase/Lease

$384 EAP Services, $486 Payroll Processing, $950 Financial Audit, $500 NYSCAA Compensation Study

CSBG CARES Grant Funds this FY

Purchase 3 Vehicles:  $49K 1 New Van, $30K 2 Nissan Rogues to be used by Family Development and Family 

Essentials. Primary usage for outreach, home visits, transporting participants, training, and  collecting donations.  

These vehicles will be used to make contactless delivery of food, clothing, and cleaning supplies to families 

effected by COVID‐19. In addition the vehicles will be for staff to use to safely complete home visits with one of 

the focus areas being prevention of COVID‐19

New York State Department of State Division of Community Services CSBG Contract





United Way for Cortland County 
2022 Allocation Request 
July 2022 – June 2023 

Name of Organization applying 

Requested Amount 

Contact Name 

Contact Phone Number 

Address 

Briefly describe the allocation purpose (1-2 lines)

Describe the problem you are addressing and the service you will use to address it (500 words)

What priority needs are you addressing?  

These needs should fit under the United Way pillars of Family Support, Income or Health 

Download and save form before completing.



Budget Narrative –  

What is the total cost of the program?  You can provide the program budget for 1 year 

Indicate other funding that will be used to support this program? 

How much funding do you need from United Way for 1 year of services? 

Justify what the funding will be used for?  

What geographic area of Cortland County will your program serve? 

Does your program serve a diverse or priority need population?  Describe 



Executive Committee Meeting               June 16, 2022 

Meeting called to order at 12:04 pm. Members present: Lynne Sypher, Billie MacNabb, Doug Bentley.  
Absent: Shelley Warnow.  
Staff: Greg Richards, Kirsten Parker, Danielle Treacy. 
 

Committee reviewed the time‐off policy changes.  Currently all regular full‐time employees are accruing 

at a personal leave rate of 1.23 hours.  Would like to change that to 1.443 hours per pay period.  This 

will give full time employees 5 days a year off (part time pro‐rated and will depend on hours worked.) 

Motion to approve change in personal time off made by Doug Bentley, 2nd by Lynne Sypher.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Committee reviewed the annual leave policy changes.  Looking to change the wording from “at least 20 

hours per pay period” to “40 hours per pay period”.  This is something that has always been a practice 

and meant to be in verbiage, but we are now finally fixing. 

We are looking to change the rollover amounts at the end of the year from 40 hours to 75 hours.  This 

would now include all employees, not just full‐time employees. 

Head Start/Early Head Start Specific Changes – Currently, Early Head Start teachers accrue vacation, 

personal, & sick leave.  They have to save 3 weeks of vacation every year for different designated weeks 

off for Program shut‐down.  These changes will vacation time for front‐line EHS staff.  CAPCO will give 

them their vacation breaks paid off.  In addition, we will also give them 1 extra week for Winter Break as 

well.  Traditionally, this was the February week that we had mandatory staff trainings.  We have 

identified 2 days that are low attendance that we will make training days.  For Head Start – we will now 

give Winter Break off as well, in addition to the other 2 weeks of break they have.  This will not cost the 

program any money and save on accrued leave expense. 

Motion to approve change in annual leave policy changes made by Billie MacNabb, 2nd by Doug Bentley.  

Motion carried. 

 

Committee reviewed changes looking to be made under employee categories.  Because of above change 

in annual leave going from at least 20 hours to 40hours, we needed to change the verbiage in the 

program year employee section as well to 40 hours per pay period in lieu of 20 hours. 

Motion to accept made by Lynne Sypher, 2nd by Billie MacNabb.  Motion carried. 

 

Committee reviewed changes to be made under inclement weather policy.  Currently the policy had 

staff coming to school at their normal scheduled time when school was under a delay.  At times, this 

would cause confusion of what time to use if a teacher came in and school ended up closing or if they 

were delayed in coming in as well.  Looking to change the policy to now delay being paid for, not 

needing to report to work until what would be their normal scheduled time. 



Motion to approve change in inclement weather policy made by Billie MacNabb, 2nd by Lynne Sypher.  

Motion carried. 

 

No further business.  Meeting adjourned at 12:50 pm. 





PERSONAL LEAVE 
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

     Policy Review/Update Effective Date: June 24, 2022 
October 28, 2021 

 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides personal leave for eligible employees.  All regular full-time employees accrue 
personal leave at a rate of 1.443 1.23 hours (pro-rated for part-time employees) per pay period 
and may use personal leave in accordance with this policy.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Personal leave will begin to accrue immediately upon hire. 
 

2. Employees may request use of paid personal leave after successful completion of the 
introductory period.  Time must be taken in 15-minute increments.  

 
3. Employees are not paid for any unused personal leave time remaining at the end of a 

calendar year or upon separation from employment. However, employees are allowed to 
carry over personal leave hours to the next calendar year, at a maximum of 8 hours. 
 

4. Personal leave must be scheduled one week in advance with exceptions approved by an 
employee’s immediate Supervisor.  
 

5. All personal leave requests must be approved by an employee’s Supervisor before 
taken. 
 

6. The time is paid at the employee’s regular hourly rate and is not used in the calculation 
of overtime. 

 
7. Unused personal days are not paid out upon termination. 

 
8. Personal leave time is not earned during any unpaid period of time. 

 
 
ANNUAL LEAVE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 Policy Review/Update Effective Date: June 24, 2022  

October 28, 2021 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides annual leave time for employees to refresh themselves and encourages and 
supports all employees to use annual leave time regularly. Leave must be preapproved and is 
not guaranteed to be granted. Leave is approved based on the demands of the program and to 
insure all program functions are sufficiently covered. All regular full-time and regular part-time 
employees earn and use annual leave time in accordance with the guidelines outlined below.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 



1. Employees begin to accrue annual leave time immediately upon hire but are ineligible to 
take annual leave time until after the successful completion of their introductory period. 
 

2. Annual leave time off accruals are based on an employee’s anniversary date. 
 

3. An eligible employee earns annual leave time beginning on his/her first day of 
employment based on the employee’s regular schedule and length of service 
determined by anniversary date.  

 
4. Non-exempt, regular full-time employees earn annual leave time based on the following 

schedule: 
 

Completed Years of Service  Annual Leave Accruals 
per Pay Period 

Less than 1 Year 3.693 hours 
After 1 Year 4.0 
After 2 Years 4.31 
After 3 Years 4.616 
After 4 Years 4.924 
After 5 Years 5.232 
After 6 Years 5.539 

After 7+ Years 5.847 
 

5. Accruals for part-time employees are prorated, and part-time employees must 
consistently work at least 20 40 hours during the pay period work week to be eligible to 
accrue annual leave. 

 
6. Employees should request approval in writing at least two weeks in advance before 

taking annual leave time.  Scheduled absences are preplanned with an employee’s 
Supervisor/Program Director in accordance with department guidelines, negotiating the 
least impact to the work area.  

 
7. It is necessary that CAPCO provide consistent services to the community as indicated 

by CAPCO’s programs and funding sources. Necessary staffing will be maintained at all 
times to insure this.  
 

8. Time-off requests can be denied if proper request protocol is not followed and/or 
program demands do not allow it for the time requested. There will be no additional 
consideration for time-off requests for employees who have pre-planned leave before 
actually requesting the time-off. Employees should not make leave plans before the 
time-off approval has been granted. 
 

9. When scheduling conflicts arise, priority for annual leave is established at the discretion 
of management. Length of employment may determine priority in scheduling annual 
leave time.  Decisions about annual leave time and scheduling are the responsibility of 
the Supervisor and Program Director. 

 
10. Annual leave time off can be taken in fifteen (15) minute increments of time.   

 
11. CAPCO does not advance annual leave time. 

 



12. CAPCO strongly encourages employees to take annual leave time every calendar year.  
Full-time Eemployees are allowed to carry over annual leave from one year to the next 
calendar year at a maximum of 75 40 hours; any annual leave time remaining above 40 
75 hours is forfeited and not paid out.  Part-time employees are allowed to carry over 
annual from one year to the next calendar year at a maximum of 20 hours; any annual 
leave time remaining above 20 hours is forfeited and not paid out.   

 
13. Any earned but unused annual leave is paid to eligible employees at the time of 

termination; provided the employee voluntarily resigns and at least two (2) weeks written 
advance notice of resignation is given for nonexempt staff and at least thirty (30) days’ 
advance notice is given for exempt staff. All other employees will not be paid for accrued 
but unused annual leave time upon termination, including but not limited to in instances 
where an employee is terminated by the Agency.  Annual leave time may not be used to 
extend the termination date.   
 

14. Upon providing written notice of resignation, an employee is not permitted to take 
accrued leave that was not pre-approved before the resignation notice was provided. 
 

15. If an employee provides advance written notice of resignation that exceeds the minimum 
notice requirements as set forth in this Manual, the employee will minimally not be 
permitted to take accrued leave that was not pre-approved during the required notice 
period. 
 

16. Annual leave time is not earned during any unpaid period of time. 
 
 
[HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 

1. Head Start/Early Head Start classroom staff do not accrue annual leave, and 
alternately receive the designated and approved paid recesses of the Head 
Start/Early Head Start Program calendar. 
 

2. Program-Year Head Start non-classroom staff do not accrue annual leave and 
alternately receive the designated and approved paid recess of the Head 
Start/Early Head Start Program calendar. 
 

3. Classroom staff for the purposes of this policy are defined as Classroom 
Teachers (i.e., Preschool Teachers, UPK Teachers, Infant/Toddler Teachers), 
Assistant Teachers, Classroom Floaters/Assistants, Kitchen Aides, Family 
Advocates, Home Visitors, and designated Program Cook staff. 
 

4. Early Head Start classroom staff receive the December, February, April, and 
August Program paid recesses. 

 
5. Program-Year Head Start classroom and non-classroom staff receive the 

December, February, and April Program paid recesses. 
 



6. This policy does not impact the accruals of Personal or Sick time, nor does it 
impact receipt of Holiday time for Head Start/Early Head Start staff. 
 

7. This Policy does not impact Head Start employees’ status as Program-Year 
Employees. 

 
 
 
 



INCLEMENT WEATHER AND OTHER EMERGENCIES 
Effective Date:  December 7, 2017 

         Policy Review/Update Effective Date: June 24, 2022 
October 28, 2021 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO monitors and keeps employees informed of changing weather conditions and other 
emergency situations before, during, and after the event.  The Agency strives for safety for all 
employees in the event of inclement weather, and other emergency situations, through staff 
support systems. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The Executive Director determines if the Agency will open or remain open in the event of 
severe weather conditions or other emergencies.  If the decision is made not to open the 
Agency, the phone message maybe changed to state that CAPCO is closed due to 
inclement weather.   

 
2. If the Agency is closed or closes early due to inclement weather, the Executive Director 

or her/his designee will send a notification to employees using the designated CAPCO 
contact system. The closure may also be posted on local radio and television stations as 
available.  

 
3. If the Agency is closed or closes early due to inclement weather, employees are paid for 

the hours they were scheduled to work. 
 

4. If the Agency remains open and the weather is questionable, employees are to 
determine if they feel it is safe to try and come to work or leave early.  If a nonexempt 
employee chooses not to come in to work, chooses to leave early, or chooses to come in 
late, he/she will not be paid for hours not worked, but may use accrued time off benefits, 
to be determined based on the accrued leave policies stated in this Manual.  If an 
exempt employee chooses not to come to work and is absent and performs no work for 
a full day, he/she will not be paid for that day, but may use accrued time off benefits.  
The employee must contact her/his Supervisor prior to the scheduled starting time to 
indicate if and when he/she will be arriving to work.  

 
5. If the Agency is open and the employee chooses not to come to work or chooses to 

leave early and then the Agency closes, he/she will receive pay for the hours the Agency 
closed provided he/she was scheduled to work. 

 
6. Employees who are not scheduled to work, or using personal time off benefits, or on any 

other paid or unpaid type of absence are not eligible for paid time off due to weather-
related or other emergencies. 

 
7. In the event of a fire, storm, or other emergency, safety is most important.  Employees 

are to move to a position of safety or exit the building as quickly as possible.  Employees 
are required to follow written evacuation and safety procedures. 
 

 
 



 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 
SNOW DAYS 
 
In addition to the procedures above, the Head Start/Early Head Start Program may be delayed 
or shut down due to inclement weather while the CAPCO Agency remains open. In general, the 
Head Start/Early Head Start Program makes determinations for delaying or shutting down the 
program based on the shutdown decisions of the local school districts, particularly when the 
Head Start/Early Head Start classrooms are located in schools.  In rare instances, some Head 
Start/Early Head Start classrooms may shut down while others remain open. If the school/center 
shuts down, Classroom staff reporting to classrooms in shutdown schools/centers will not 
report. All other Head Start/Early Head Start staff will report unless the Agency closes. 
 

a. If the Head Start/Early Head Start classrooms are on a delay or shutdown due to 
inclement weather, the Head Start Program Director or her/his designee will send 
a notification to Head Start/Early Head Start employees using the designated 
CAPCO contact system.  
 

b. The Head Start Program Director or her/his designee will contact local news 
stations to further communicate with staff and inform participant families  of 
delays and program closings. 

 
c. The Head Start Program Director or her/his designee will contact area radio 

stations to further communicate any delays or program closings. 
 

d. If a Head Start/Early Head Start classroom is on a delay, Classroom staff receive 
the delay paid for the hours they were scheduled to work. Non-classroom staff 
are still to report to work at their regularly scheduled time. all Head Start/ Early 
Head Start staff, including Classroom staff, are still to report to work at their 
regularly scheduled time. 

 
 

d. Classroom staff for the purposes of this policy are defined as Classroom 
Teachers (i.e., Preschool Teachers, UPK Teachers, Infant/Toddler Teachers), 
Assistant Teachers, Classroom Floaters/Assistants, Kitchen Aides, Family 
Advocates, Home Visitors, and designated Program Cook staff. 
 



EMPLOYMENT CATEGORIES AND DEFINITIONS 
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

     Policy Review/Update Effective Date: June 24, 2022 
October 28, 2021 

 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO classifies employees and defines categories and responsibilities of employment 
according to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and the New York State Labor Law. CAPCO 
expects all persons associated with the Agency, regardless of relationship, to respect and follow 
the policies and procedures outlined in this Manual.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Job descriptions will indicate whether the position is exempt or nonexempt.  
2. Classification will be determined based on the FLSA criteria and New York State Labor 

Law.  
 
The following are the descriptions of each category. 
 
EMPLOYEE CATEGORIES: 
 
Regular Full-Time Employee 
A regular full-time employee is an employee regularly scheduled to work at least 37.5 hours per 
week, may be exempt or nonexempt, and is not in a temporary status or introductory period.  
Regular full-time employees are eligible for all standard benefits, subject to the terms, 
conditions, and limitations of each benefit program. 
 
Regular Part-Time Employee 
A regular part-time employee is an employee with regularly scheduled hours that are less than 
37.5 hours per week, may be exempt or nonexempt, and is not in a temporary status or 
introductory period.  Regular part-time employees are not eligible for CAPCO benefits that 
include minimum hours for eligibility (except those legally required). Refer to Section 3 of this 
Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual for benefit eligibility guidelines.  
 
Program Year Employee [HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
At the conclusion of a successful Introductory Period, the employee will be placed on a regular 
Program Year status. All such employees will receive paid approved recesses of the Head Start 
calendar. The number of weeks of employment will be determined in accordance with the 
approved Head Start calendar. Personal leave benefits for employees who work part-time with 
regularly scheduled hours of 20 40 hours per pay period week or more will be pro-rated based 
upon the number of actual hours and weeks worked. Minimum hour requirements may impact 
accruals of leave benefits. Refer to Section 3 of this Manual for benefit eligibility guidelines. 
Program Year Employees with a full-time work week of 37.5 hours shall receive the Agency’s 
health and life insurance throughout the entire year according to the Agency’s benefit 
requirements. 
 
Introductory (Probationary) Employee 
All exempt and nonexempt employees are on an introductory period for the first 90 days of 
employment.  Additionally, current employees who are transferred or promoted to a new 
position in a different Program-area, department, and/or functional area are placed on a 90-day 



introductory period. Before the end of the introductory period, a written evaluation will be made 
by the employee’s immediate Supervisor, based on satisfactory CAPCO standards, for the 
purpose of determining the employee’s continued employment with the Agency.  However, the 
completion of the introductory period does not guarantee employment for any period of time 
thereafter. Employees who satisfactorily complete the introductory period will be notified of their 
new employment category.   
 
Head Start/Early Head Start Employee [HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
Employees working primarily* within the Head Start/Early Head Start program or more of the 
time are classified as Head Start/Early Head Start employees.  These employees may work less 
than 12 months and are subject to additional Head Start/Early Head Start regulations and 
requirements. 
*Per OHS Policy Clarification, “…the dollar amount constitutes more than half of the particular individual’s 
compensation.” 
 
Temporary Employee 
A temporary employee is hired as an interim replacement to supplement the work force or to 
assist in a specific project.   
  
Employment assignments in this category are of a limited duration.  Temporary employees 
retain that status until notified of a status change.  Temporary workers receive all legally 
required benefits (e.g., Workers’ Compensation (WC) and Social Security), but may be ineligible 
for any of CAPCO’s benefit programs. 
 
NON-EMPLOYEE CATEGORIES: 
 
Volunteer 
The term "volunteer" means an unpaid person who is trained to assist in implementing ongoing 
program activities on a regular basis under the supervision of a staff person in areas such as 
health, family development, education, transportation, nutrition, and management. 
 
Independent Consultant 
A person who receives compensation for professional or technical services at a fee agreed 
upon and paid by the Agency, who is engaged as an independent contractor (or third-party 
contractor) for specified services and is not a CAPCO employee.  Consultants’ compensation 
will be reported to the IRS and IRS Form 1099 will be issued for all contracts of six hundred 
dollars ($600) or more. 
 
Board of Directors 
The governing body with legal and fiscal responsibility for administering the programs within the 
Agency.  
 
Policy Council [HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
The formal group of parents and community representatives required to be established by the 
Agency to assist in decisions about the planning and operation of the Head Start/Early Head 
Start program.  
 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT DEFINITIONS: 
 



Employees are classified as exempt or nonexempt from the overtime provisions of the FLSA (29 
CFR Part 541) and state wage and hour laws. 
 
Exempt Employee 
Employees in exempt positions are: 
 

 Paid on a salaried basis. 
 Paid to do the job and must meet the federal and state DOL requirements for exemption. 
 Excluded from specific provisions of federal and state wage and hour laws.  
 Not eligible for overtime pay. 

 
Nonexempt Employee 
Employees in nonexempt positions are: 
 

 Paid on an hourly or salary basis.  
 Entitled to overtime pay for hours worked in excess of 40 in a work week. 

 
Nothing contained in this policy will impact the policy of employment-at-will.   
 
 



Executive Director Report               June 2022 

 

 

 CAPCO held our first in‐person All‐Staff Training Day on Friday, June 10th at the Marathon Civic 

Building. We typically hold a minimum of 2 All‐Staff days each year that are required workdays 

for staff for staff development and training. Throughout the pandemic, we have held these 

virtually, and it was a noticeable difference being able to be all in the same space this year and 

all together across departments and programs. As Deputy Director, Kirsten parker led the efforts 

and the committee to plan this spring’s All‐Staff Day, which typically concluded with a ‘fun’ and 

interactive activity for staff. This year, we started our morning with some staff recognitions, 

followed by Cyber Security by our partners at Plan First. Our Agency’s S.A.F.E. Committee 

conducted a Slips, Trips, and Falls Prevention training followed by Sexual Harassment Prevention 

training conducted by our HR Coordinator, Nikki Thomas. Our lunch was catered by a local 

Marathon eatery, Mijo’s Grill, followed by Years of Service recognition and wildly popular 

activities put on by Team Adventure that included outdoor interactive team building activities. A 

huge thank you to Kirsten and the committee as well as our local Marathon Board Members, 

Shelley Warnow and Mary Bliss for stopping into this great day! 

 

 Following our Strategic Planning retreat on June 1st and ongoing Management discussions since 

the beginning of the year, we are continuing to look at our staff recruitment and retention 

efforts, including policies around time‐off accruals and usage, hours of operation, remote work, 

and inclement weather policies. This includes how we look at working time‐off for our Head 

Start/Early Head Start classroom and front‐line staff that have always had a different practice 

for use of time‐off as it relates to following the school district calendar. We are proposing some 

immediate changes now while we take the summer to do a deeper dive on some larger 

procedure changes as we head toward the fall of the year. The Executive Committee has 

reviewed some of those immediate changes that will be presented under Executive Committee’s 

report for resolution approval. 

 

 The Head Start/Early Head Start Program is working with Bruce Martins from Elm Tree Golf 

Course to re‐look at the lease for the Elm Tree Early Head Start space. In April of 2021, the 

Program signed another 3‐year lease with Elm Tree with the unknowns of the space needed 

coming out of the pandemic shutdowns and the reduction/conversion model we are to start 

operating under. With this, it has been determined that the Elm Tree space will now not be 

needed nor can be supported by the entitlement HS/EHS grant with the addition of the Learning 

Adventure space we are now renting from the YWCA Cortland on Huntington Street. We have 

attempted to provide Bruce with our 60‐day notice to break our lease, but Bruce is requesting 

concessions as it pertains to the term of the lease and our ability to break the lease. We are 

working with the Finance Committee and the Program to develop a compromised plan to 

continue paying Bruce through either OCFS stabilization or our ARP stimulus dollars until which 

time Bruce can re‐rent the space. We will continue to keep the Board apprised of our progress.  

 



 
 

 The Parker Project remains very much in limbo at this point as the Parker Planning Committee 

appointed by the City continues to meet with us at CAPCO and the YWCA Cortland on a bi‐

weekly basis. Following our last meeting that was held in the Parker building, it was revealed 

that the architectural bids that were conducted back in February did not provide an updated 

estimate of renovation costs from the original estimates in 2019. While this is puzzling, Troy 

Beckwith on the committee will be taking the pro‐bono plans that were done in 2019 and using 

his architectural programming to convert those figures to 2022 dollars. Once we have these 

figures, we will know the additional costs of the building renovations given inflation and the 

time span between the initial estimates. Initially, the estimates to renovate the building to be 

ready to move‐in were approximately 1.5 million dollars, and both CAPCO and the YWCA 

attained the DASNY and NYS Empire grants to cover the costs that the City is currently sitting on 

with no additional progress made. The YWCA continues to fluctuate in terms of their 

commitment to the project and space needed if they remain committed with the uncertainties 

coming out of the pandemic. This, coupled with the anticipated increases in costs, will 

determine CAPCO’s next steps with the project. We will be holding an Executive Committee 

meeting in July to more in‐depthly go over the concerns and challenges with Parker Project and 

we will continue to keep the full Board apprised.  

 

 We concluded the HS/EHS federal review on May 26th, and we are awaiting the results of the 

review that can take anywhere from 45‐90 days. Bethann and her team are now working to put 

together the Corrective Action Plan for the January 26th deficiency, which include resources and 

insights from our Training & Technical Assistance “deployment team” through the Office of 

Head Start. Our Corrective Action Plan is due by July 1, 2022. Our Agency is also preparing for 

our TRACS Review through the NYS Department of State (DOS), which is our Agency‐wide review 

on a tri‐annual basis as a Community Action Program and how we meet the Organization 

Standards governed by NYS DOS. Our in‐person review dates are scheduled for July 12th & 13th.  

 

 As reported at the May 2022 Board meeting, we have officially submitted our first back‐file 

dating back to the end of January for Fidelis to HHAeXchange. While we are thrilled to officially 

have 1 file through, there is a lot of work to do to get us caught up while real‐time billing 

continues. Martha and her team are working on 3 more files and are working to have all back‐

billing caught up by the end of the summer. Cash flow remains solid as we work to complete 

back‐billing.  



Deputy Director Report 
Kirsten Parker 
June 2022 

 
 

 Volunteer Driver Program‐The Federal mileage reimbursement rate has increased to $.625.  
This will allow us to reimburse drivers at a slightly higher rate.  We are hoping this will help a 
little with driver recruitment.   

 Consumer Directed Care‐I will be meeting with Greg to make some decisions and short‐term 
and long‐term plans for the program.  We are still not taking any new consumers, but we may 
start to slowly add consumers in the coming weeks.  At this time, we will not be accepting new 
Fidelis consumers.   

 HR/Staff Recruitment‐We have made some progress hiring for Head Start/Early Head Start.  We 
had one promising applicant for the WIC Nutritionist job, but she declined due to the 
vaccination mandate and not being able to work remotely.  Healthy Families offered the 
position to an applicant for the position they have open, but the candidate never responded. 

 Dairy Parade‐ Was held June 7th, CAPCO decorated one of the vans and had about 14 staff and 
family members volunteered to walk.  We gave out recruiting materials for Head Start and WIC 
and cow bracelets with our QR code for open positions.  It was cold, miserable weather, but the 
rain stopped just long enough for us to get down the route. 

 All‐Staff Day‐ We held all‐staff day on June 10th at the Civic Building in Marathon.  Our staff and 
Plan First did some trainings in the morning, Mijo’s Bar and Grill in Marathon catered lunch and 
then Team Adventure led team building activities outside in the afternoon.  Thank you to Mary 
and Shelley who were able to join us for part of the day. Overall, the day was well received.  It 
was nice to finally be able to meet in person again. 

 WIC Budget‐ I have been trying to help Kay with the WIC budget, it will be another very 
challenging year.  The RFA is due right behind it.  

 Family Development Credentialing Program‐My portfolio is finally submitted, now we wait. 

 Golf Tournament‐We do not have the final numbers from the golf tournament yet, but I am 
anticipating a profit of about $12,000. 



 
 

Energy Services / 
Building Maintenance 
Update for June 2022 

 
 

Energy Services 
 
Weatherization Assistance Program- PY2021- 2022  (Cortland & Tompkins Counties)   

 
o HCR has approved the PY22 contract package for $872,272. 

 
o ARPA contract work is delayed due to subcontractors not bidding, returning calls, 

having employees to work, and booked out for months.  This contract to date 
ends September 30, 2022. 

 
o We have a Heat Technician returning on the 21st and a new Crew Laborer has 

started this week.  One position still open for another Crew Laborer.   
 

o Wrapping up our PY21 WAP contract to spend out and completing 80 units. Our 
goal was 97 units.  Due to the high material costs we had to do less units.   

 
EmPower NY  (Cortland & Tompkins Counties) 

 
6 - jobs have been completed.    
   

HEAP-  
 

19- Air conditioners supplied to HEAP participants.           
 
Energy Savers-  N/A 

  
    

 
CAPCO Building Maintenance-    

 
 SMain Renovations: 

o Materials have been delivered for the Pavilion. 
o Playground fencing will be done the week of the 20th. 
o Sewer piping replacement will be done 6/24 to 7/1.   

 
 
 
 

      



Family Development Board Report                      June 2022 
 
   
Adult Education 

 We have been awarded the Pro Literacy Opportunity Grant in the amount of $4,000 to 
help offset cost in the Adult Education Program.  

 We have been awarded a grant from the town of Cortlandville in the amount of $5,000 
to help offset cost in the Adult Education Program.  

 Three students enrolled in our collaborative Certified Nursing Assistance (CNA) Program 
at TC3 that began in June.  

 Three students took the GED exam in June. One passed all tests and will receive a 
diploma and two students passed 2 of the 4 tests needed to receive a diploma.  
 

Emergency Assistance 
 We have scheduled our Everybody’s Baby Shower for July 27 at 2:00pm. The event 

provides education, gifts, and referrals to new and expectant moms.  
 We will be at the Marathon Food Pantry on June 21 with representatives from SNAP and 

Fidelis Care.  
 We have a site visit with the Food Bank of Central NY scheduled for June 23.  
 Family Essentials had installed new hanging racks attached to the walls, eliminating 

some of the standing rack, making more space for shoppers. 
  

NOEP 
 We have received notification of an approved contract beginning July 2022. The contract 

was increased by $6,000 to $72,000. This increase will help us share SNAP and other 
food resources with the community.  

 Jessica planning summer outreach efforts at summer feeding sites and local parks.  
 Jessica will help at the Fresh Food Giveaway on June 29 at 4:30 at The Chapel.  

 
Healthy Families 

 We have completed interviews for the Family Resource Specialist position and will be  
checking references and making an offer in the coming weeks.         

 We received very positive feedback from our Program Manager from our site visit in 
May. Staff are working on improving program capacity and documenting parent child 
interactions.   

 We met our goal of receiving 12 new family screenings in the month of May.  
 Program staff completed outreach at Kidsville and Molinas Baby Shower recruiting new 

and expectant moms to the program.  

 

                                    



 
 

     Directors Monthly Board Report 

From:  HS/EHS Management Team 
Month:  June 2022 

 
I. Enrollment 

A. We are beginning to enroll children for the 2022‐2023 program year. Both programs are currently 
at 50% capacity.  

B. We are striving for full enrollment.  We are initiating a staff recruitment initiative and pushing 
enrollment of children in the community.  

ll. Staffing 
A. We continue to recruit for opening positions, and substitutes.  Still have quite a few vacant 

positions open (mainly education part‐ and full‐time positions). 
B. We have filled out Nutrition Manager position, in addition to hiring a few Head Start and Early 

Head Start teaching positions.  
III. Center/Office Updates/Policy Council/ Professional Development 

A. We have started to plan for the HS/EHS August Pre – Service trainings. We have 3 national trainers 
booked. These training days will be held at Greek Peak conference center.  
 

IV. Old Business 
A. We are seeing less and less classroom shut downs due to COVID.  
B. A new Parker advisory committee has been formed and have met twice. One was a short meet and 

greet at CAPCO, the other was a walk through of the building. We are currently waiting on the cities 
lead to move forward. 

C. Learning Adventure (ELC): We are ready to open! July 1st our EHS classrooms will be closed and will 
use this day to get their new rooms set up in the new building.  

D. We continue to provide staff wellness for all staff. This Friday is the last day for our Head Start 
Program. We are providing a chicken BBQ lunch and thank you gifts.  

E. COLA/QI letter has been submitted. We have not heard any thing else from OHS on their 
acceptance of our grant proposal. 

F. Federal Review was completed the week of May 23rd. All went really well. We await the written 
report from OHS and we will share that report in the coming months.  

G. We will again be offering a summer extended program for 4 year olds who will be entering 
kindergarten in the fall. We have secured staff and are following up with interested families.  

 
 

V. New Business 
A.  We will be submitting our corrective action plan for the deficiency we received in response to the 
incident at the Randall 1 classroom. Submission date is July 1st with a follow up phone call on July 11th   
 

 
 



WIC Program Monthly Report 

Kay Brewster 

6/13/22 

 

 May enrollment and caseload are the highest so far this fiscal year. We are proud to have served over 1000 

participants in May. 

 We are working hard on our FFY 23 Budget, it is due 6/22. It is very challenging due to the only 2% increase. 

 We are also in the process of completing our FFY 24‐28 RFA. Our intention is to continue our previous plan of 

applying for Cortland and Chenango County service areas. 

 We continue to have an opening for a nutritionist. We are working with HR to fill this. I am reaching out to 

colleges/universities hopeful that recent graduates may be interested.  

 NYS has released a temporary formula guide including some additional can sizes and brands of formula to help 

during the shortage. We do not know how long this will be in place. Health Care Providers have been notified via 

fax and participants have been notified via Facebook and during phone contacts. Convenience and 

transportation concerns continue to be the primary obstacle for our participants. Participants may need to visit 

multiple stores on multiple days to obtain what they need but it seems to be available within the week. 

 Farmer’s Market Nutrition Program benefits were delayed but we now have our coupons and are distributing 

them to participants. They were increased to $25 value per participant this year. 

  The Public Health Emergency remains through July 20, 2022. Because we have not heard of it being cancelled, it 

is likely it will be extended again through October 20, 2022. This would mean remote flexibility and waiver of 

physical presence would remain in place through January 2023. 

  We continue to encourage participants to come in person as able and comfortable to optimize WIC services. It 

continues to be well received; we have many families that do want to come in. 

 

 

 

 









 

 

 

 

CORTLAND COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM  

HEAD START / EARLY HEAD START 

 

Corrective Action Plan (CAP) 
July 1, 2022 

 

02CH010916 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

CORTLAND COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM HEAD START / EARLY HEAD START 

Corrective Action Plan (CAP) 

02CH010916 

 

Deficiency: Human Resource Management 1302.90 Personnel policies, (c) Standard of conduct. (1) A program must ensure all staff, consultants, 

contractors, and volunteers abide by the program’s standard of conduct that: (ii) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers do not maltreat 

or endanger the health or safety of children, including at a minimum, that staff must not: (A) Use corporal punishment; (G) Physically abuse a child. 

 

OHS Finding: The CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program did not ensure all staff abided by CAPCO personnel policies or standard of 

conduct, so that, at a minimum staff did not maltreat or endanger the health and safety of children. Head Start staff did not follow the CAPCO Head 

Start written behavior management plan, specifically incident reported on January 27, 2022, that took place at the Randall 1 classroom on January 26, 

2022. The CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program provided OHS with documentation of the incident, copy of the NYS Office of Children & 

Family Services (OCFS) incident report, documented responses to additional questions and all other information requested by OHS.  

 

Root Cause and Correction: The CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program has thoroughly reviewed the incident that occurred on January 26, 

2022. The CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program has identified several root causes which contributed to the child maltreatment incident. 

The identified causes are as follows: 

1) Staff Turnover, specifically movement of staff amongst classrooms for coverage 

2) Staff Burnout due to staffing situations throughout the year 

3) Lack of implementing the established child guidance/behavior management policy and procedures 

While the causes can be identified and corrected through training and improved communication systems, CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start has 

zero tolerance in regard to child maltreatment. Upon notification of the classroom incident, the staff member who took part in the endangerment of 

the health and safety of the child was suspended immediately from work without pay on January 27, 2022 pending investigative results. The staff 

member was then terminated on February2, 2022. While the CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program provides many hours of training across 

OCFS and HPPS requirements, the program is focused on ensuring that staff provide nurturing care to all children, supervisors are providing ongoing 

supervision and support, standards of conduct are followed, positive discipline techniques are used, and best practices in early childhood education is 

a culture in every classroom.  

 



The CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program will prioritize and enhance ongoing training, coaching, supervision, monitoring, in addition to 

intentionally providing ongoing staff wellness initiatives.   

  

The CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program has identified some gaps in systems, communicated these system gaps in person to all staff, 

developed a training plan with identified strategies for continuous quality improvement, determined how the program will evaluate success of the 

information from training, and has enhanced the program’s ongoing monitoring system. All staff, in all functional areas will participate in trainings 

within the corrective action plan. The CAP that follows, indicates the action steps CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program has implemented 

and will continue to implement moving forward to ensure the health and safety of the children in the CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start program 

and the well being of staff. The training and professional development plan will be included in the programs future Training and Technical 

Assistance Plans to support the sustainability of the CAP and future efforts to ensure and maintain quality.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Deficiency: Standards of Conduct 
System or Service Area: Human Resources 
Key Area: Training and Professional Development 
Strategy: Enhance staff awareness of proper conduct and expectations when working with children 

Action Steps 
Person(s) responsible 

for implementing 
strategy 

Time Frame Evidence 
 

1. Staff will take part in the following to ensure all staff 
have a thorough understanding of what child abuse 
means, what their responsibilities are and how to report 
when necessary: 
 

• Child Abuse and Neglect Training: Identifying and 
Reporting Child Abuse, Maltreatment and 
Neglect, System for Reporting and Self-Reporting 
– 2 hour, pre-service, in house training and formal 
training provided by Child Advocacy (More is less) 
 

• Mandated Reporter Online Training – Two hour 
child abuse identification and reporting training 
from the Early Childhood Education and Training 
Program (ECETP)  

 

• Child Supervision Online Training – 1.5 hour 
training from the Early Childhood Education and 
Training Program (ECETP). During this fully 
narrated course trainees will learn about the 
importance of properly supervising children in 
child care programs, including information on 
types of injuries, ratio, supervision techniques, 
supervision in different scenarios, staff absences 
and consequences of inadequate supervision.  

 

• Safety Huddles and Daily Reflection notebooks – 
2 hour, pre-service, in house training provided by 
Bethann Wieder, Director HS/EHS. Safety huddles 
create a culture of safety. They are brief and 
routine meetings for sharing information about 
potential or existing safety concerns. Daily 
reflection notebooks is a daily exercise between 
all classroom teaching staff to meet for five to 

 
 
 
 
 
Director, Education / 
Special Needs 
Coordinator, Mental 
Health Specialist, HS 
Leadership team, All 
Head Start and Early 
Head Start staff 
 
All Head Start and Early 
Head Start Staff 
 
 
 
All Head Start and Early 
Head Start Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All Head Start and Early 
Head Start Staff 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Pre-Service 
August 24, 2022  
 
 
 
 
 
Pre-Service 
August 12 – 
September 1, 
2022 
 
 
Pre-Service 
August 12 – 
September 1, 
2022 
 
 
 
 
 
August 24, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Training 
Certificates, 
meeting 
agendas, sign in 
sheets, check 
lists   
 
Check list of 
certificates on 
file 
 
 
 
Check list of 
certificates on 
file 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda and sign 
in sheet 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
File attached of all sign 
in sheets, checklists and 
agendas  
 
 
 
 
 



fifteen minutes a day to reflect on and discuss 
what went well during the day and what did not 
go well.  

 
 

• Day Care regulations:  Hand out Day Care 
regulations to all staff with an overall summary. 
Training was specific to Active Supervision, Cell 
Phone Policy, Confidentiality and Behavior 
Management.  

 

• Head Start Performance Standards: All 
classrooms have a copy of performance 
standards. Gave an overall summary of the 
standards and Federal monitoring. Shared the 
correspondence from OHS on the deficiency and 
the noncompliance of our program.  

 

• Health and Safety Online Training – 5 Hours for 
newly hired staff.  This fully narrated 5 hour e-
Learning course offers important information and 
strategies to facilitate and improve the safety and 
health of children in regulated child care 
programs and enrolled legally exempt 
programs. training from the Early Childhood 
Education and Training Program (ECETP 

 

• Functional area staff meetings as ongoing 
training and team building. Refreshers in child 
abuse and neglect, appropriate developmental 
practices, review of active supervision, transitions 
and responding to challenging behaviors. See 
agenda’s and sign in sheets.  
 

• Improve hiring practices to ensure that the 
selected candidates are a solid match for the job 
positions and for working with children. Train 
Management team and assistants in relationship 
readiness interview questions. Dispositional 
qualities for educational professionals. The 
difference between recruitment and talent 

 
 
 
 
 
All Head Start and Early 
Head Start Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
All Head Start and Early 
Head Start Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
All Head Start and Early 
Head Start Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All classroom staff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Management with 
Assistants, Director 

 
 
 
 
 
Pre-Service 
August 12 – 
September 1, 
2022 
 
 
 
Pre-Service 
August 12 – 
September 1, 
2022 
 
 
 
Pre-Service 
August 12 – 
September 1, 
2022 
 
 
 
 
Pre-Service 
August 12 – 
September 1, 
2022 
 
 
 
Pre-Service 
August 12 – 
September 1, 
2022 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda and sign 
in sheet 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda and sign 
in sheet 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda and sign 
in sheet 
Certificates on 
file 
 
 
 
 
Agenda and sign 
in sheets for 
each age level, 
EHS, 3yo, 4yo HS 
staff 
 
 
 



acquisition. Hiring and retaining qualified staff. 
(Handouts and information taken from National 
Center on Program Management and Fiscal 
Operations.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deficiency: Standards of Conduct 
System or Service Area: Human Resources 
Key Area: Policy and Procedures 
Strategy: Review policies and procedures to maintain positive classroom climate and culture, and eliminate incidents of child abuse 
and neglect.  

Action Steps 
Person(s) responsible 

for implementing 
strategy 

Time Frame Evidence 
 

1. Review with Staff: See attached policies narrative with 
policies 

Education: 
• ED 04 Monitoring  

• ED 05 Observation of Classroom Staff  

• ED 14 Active Supervision of Children  
Mental Health: 

• MH 03 Mental Health Support Services  

• MH 05 Positive Behavior Support Policy  

• MH 08 Building Staff Resiliency (tap out)  
 

 
Family Services: 

• FE 16 Mandated Reporting 
 
2. Standard of Conduct 

• Reflects performance standards language  

• Re-signed by all staff   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Education Coordinator, 
Education Supervisors, 
Mental Health Specialist, 
Coach, Director, Head 
Start Leadership 
 
 
 
 
 
All Head Start and Early 
Head Start Staff 
 
All Head Start and Early 
Head Start Staff 
 
 

 
 
Pre-Service 
August 12 – 
September 1, 
2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Agenda and sign 
in sheet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Deficiency: Standards of Conduct 
System or Service Area: Mental Health 
Key Area: Well Being; Self Care; Coping Strategies 
Strategy: Increase opportunities for staff to cope with daily stress, improve work/life balance, mental health, and overall well-
being: build a culture that views self-care and well-being as important.  

Action Steps 
Person(s) responsible 

for implementing 
strategy 

Time Frame Evidence 
 

1. Head Start Wellness Committee 

• Recruit staff for new program year wellness 
committee. Committee provides training and 
activities to enhance staff mental health and work 
/ life balance 
 
 

Director, Education 
Coordinator, Education 
Supervisors 

August 24, 2022 Committee 
reports and 
minutes 

 

2. Employee Assistance Program 

• Email from Human Resource Director 

• Summary of Benefits 
 
 

Human Resources August 24, 2022 Date stamped 
email from HR 

 

Deficiency: Standards of Conduct 
System or Service Area: Planning 
Key Area: Program Management, Oversight of Systems  
Strategy: Communication / Decision Making 

Action Steps 
Person(s) responsible 

for implementing 
strategy 

Time Frame Evidence 
 

1. Meeting /Discussions with STG International 
(Technical Assistance). 

• Discussion of monitoring event findings and 
action steps for the development of CAP.  

 

• Policy Council discussions and approvals 
 

• Board of Directors Discussions and approvals 
 
 
 
 

Director, Head Start 
Management Team, 
Head Start Leadership 
Team 
 
Director / Assistant 
Director 
 
Executive Director 
 
 
 
 

May 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deployment 
from Regional 
Office 
 
 
 
Approvals, 
minutes 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Attached File 



2. Staff Wellness Survey 
 

• Using the 12 Engagement Elements create a 
staff wellness survey to better understand what 
staff wellness needs are.  
 

3.  Reflective Supervision 
 

• Send leadership to formal training to create a 
system of ongoing and regular communication 
with staff.  
 

4. Monthly training schedule  
 

• Ongoing monthly thematic training schedule 
pushed out to staff to cover an array of staff 
wellness topics 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
HS Leadership  
 
 
 
 
 
HS/EHS education 
supervisor 
 
 
 
 
 
PD Specialist, HS 
Director 

 
 
August 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
Summer / Fall 
2022 
 
 
 
 
 
Summer 2022 

 
 
Survey data 
 
 
 
 
 
Training 
Certificates 
 
 
 
 
 
Training 
Calendar 

 

 


	JUNE 2022 FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKAGE_April 2022 Financials.pdf
	Finance Director Monthly Checklist-submit to Finance Committee
	ADM-APR-2022
	BLDG-APR-2022
	MEDICAID-APR-2022
	ECD-APR-2022_policy council
	ESD-APR-2022
	CSBG-APR-2022
	WIC-WIC-2022
	2022-2023 WAP CONTRACT BUDGET


	Name: Cortland County Community Action Program
	amount: 15000
	contact name: Greg Richards
	phone number: (607) 753-6781
	address: 32 North Main StreetCortland, NY  13045
	allocation purpose: CAPCO’s Adult Education Program provides youth and adults who lack a high school diploma or have low literacy skills with knowledge needed to meet education and employment goals.   
	problem: Problem.  CAPCO’s Getting Ahead Adult Education Program addresses issues of low education and low earning power. The 2020 United Way ALICE in New York report indicated that 43% of Cortland County’s households struggle with limited income that does not meet basic needs. Federal data links lack of a high school diploma with poverty.   In 2020 in Cortland County, 9.1% of adults over 25 years old (2,699) did not have a high school diploma. The poverty level for people in Cortland County with no high school degree and over 25 years of age was 27.2%. (NYSCCA, New York State Annual Poverty Report, 2020).  In Fall 2017, 474 students started ninth grade in five Cortland County schools; 187 were economically disadvantaged (ED). In 2021, 21% of the ED students did not graduate with their peers, compared with 6% non-graduation rate for economically advantaged students.  (NYS Education Department, 2021 School Report Card).  Reasons for academic gaps include: childhood traumas, illness, pregnancy, or economic needs of their families. The pandemic added remote learning hardships, increased family stressors, and decreased access to community resources. These issues have heightened the need for adult education resources in our community. Services.  Our program uses a values-based approach that respects each person’s unique perspective and experience. Our core values – Respect, Curiosity, Good Mind, and Persistence –are fundamental for cognitive brain development that help people acquire academic skills,  overcome adverse effects of trauma, and recognize achievements. Our key program areas are:  (1) High School Equivalency Prep (HSE Prep) provides young adults and adults with instruction in the Reading, Writing, Social Studies, Science, and Mathematics needed to pass New York State’s GED© exam and earn a High School Equivalency diploma.  We offer a variety of customized in-person instruction and at-home study options, including loans of WiFi enabled IPads.  (2) Literacy Volunteers of Cortland County (LVCC) recruits and trains volunteers to help adults with low literacy skills improve their reading, writing and math skills to meet personal and employment goals.  (3)  Workforce Development. Getting Ahead Life skills workshops help youth and adults practice problem-solving, team-work, and networking skills essential for improving their employability.  A retired career counselor volunteers to help our graduates define and pursue career and secondary education goals.  The AEI CNA program recruits and supports students for TC3’s intensive Certified Nursing Assistant Program. (4) National External Degree Program. This portfolio-based, online program provides highly motivated adults  with an alternative path to a New York State High School Equivalency diploma. The NEDP program includes extensive career assessment and work skills related education. CAPCO staff are in process of becoming New York State certified assessors for NEDP.(5) Inviting, Safe Classroom Space. As a result of the pandemic related health protocols, we now offer our students a larger classroom space where students can study and interact while maintaining social distance protocols.  (6)  Transition Recognitions. We recognize students for attendance and other achievements.  Highlights are the cap and gown graduation ceremonies for people earning their diplomas.  
	priority: Income. Low literacy rates and lack of high school diploma are directly linked to levels of employment and potential for income. Lack of education and poverty are linked in a vicious cycle. Adults who were unable to complete high school are at a disadvantage in today’s job market. In a rural county, people with low literacy skills have erratic work schedules from available, low-skill, part-time shift work. Many adults with low literacy skills struggle to provide academic support if their children or grandchildren struggle with reading, writing or math. In this way, lack of education contributes to the cycles of generational poverty. 
	total cost: $99,896
	funding: Dollar General Literacy Foundation ($6,800 awarded in May 2022), Literacy Opportunity Grant ($4,000 awarded in May 2022), Community Services Block Grant ($79,668).  In addition, the National Book Fund recently gave an in-kind donation of adult education books from New Readers Press worth $717.38.
	1 year funding: $15,000
	justify: United Way funding request includes $10,000 for a portion of the salary and benefits for Adult Education Program Coordinator and $5,000 for classroom space rent and utilities. The Adult Education Program Coordinator (AEC) manages administrative detail related to enrolling and pre- testing people for the Adult Literacy program, the GED High School Equivalency Program, and the National External Decree Program.  The AEC also manages all CAPCO’s workforce related education programs including recruitment and support for TC3’s Certified Nursing Assistance Program and the Getting Ahead works skills workshops. For each adult education student, the AEC administers the entry level tests used to identify reading and math strengths and gaps.  She works with students and school guidance departments to acquire all required application materials for the New York State’s GED High School Equivalency exams.  The AEC is the agency’s lead contact with New York State for CAPCO’s administration of the National External Degree Program (NEDP).  This role includes conducting career assessment with enrolled students, assessing students’ portfolio work, and providing support for the three other CAPCO staff (1 Adult Education and 2 Head Start staff) who work with NEDP students.  The AEC provides technical computer support to the instructional staff – and to any student who is working remotely.  Her administrative responsibilities allow two part-time adult education staff to focus on providing students with customized instruction. This much needed position was made possible through United Way funding.  The Adult Education Classroom Space provides students with a safe, welcoming place to conduct their studies. In 2020 with rent support from the federal COVID CARES funding, we moved our classroom into the building next door to our main office. This space allows us to meet Health Department social distancing protocols, serve more students at the same time, and provide students with a more creative and effective learning environment. With the ending of the federal CARES funding, CAPCO does need funding to support rent to allow us to continue to provide services in this space.  
	area: CAPCO’s Adult Education Program serves the entire county. Our home study options allow people throughout the county to pursue studies wherever they live. 
	describe: As a community action agency, CAPCO’s services specifically target people who struggle financially. In 2021, CAPCO served 3,480 low income individual and 1,150 low income households through our community need focused programs and resources designed to assist those living in poverty in Cortland County. CAPCO’s adult education program serves people who did not graduate with their classmates and who struggle with limited income that does not meet basic needs.  The majority of our students are young adults who left high school within the past three years. Many have documented learning disabilities. The pandemic has hit our target population very hard.  We are seeing increased enrollment from youth and young adults who have fallen further behind during the pandemic.  Our program addresses academic gaps, provides a safe place to recover from trauma, and creates an environment that celebrates success.In 2021, Adult Education served 110 students, ages 16 to 76.  Of those 64 (58%) were between ages of 16 and 22.  We also served 22 students ages 23 to 30 and 14 adults between ages of 40 to 76.  Of the total students served in 2021, 68 were female, 42 were male, 92 self-identified as white,11 as African American, 4 as Hispanic, and 2 as American Indian. In our youth program, eleven had been in foster care, 12 were children of incarcerated parents, 18 were involved with the justice system, and 3 were homeless. In 2022, we are on track to reach pre-pandemic enrollment of 130 students.In 2021, at enrollment, the average new student entry tested at 5th grade reading and 4th grade math levels.  Seven students were low literacy working with volunteer tutors, seven were in the National External Degree Program, and four were 2020 graduates receiving career counseling and/or college support. About 44 students had some form of remote study learning program via Zoom, land mail, email, phone, or a combination.  Despite obstacles, 24 students earned their High School Equivalency Diplomas during 2021. Since 2013 148 people have earned diplomas through CAPCO’s Adult Education Program.  
	Submit: 


